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The Victorian Chamber represents 
the long-lasting bastions of trust  
in our community – businesses  
and industry.

To serve as the President of the Victorian Chamber of 
Commerce and Industry is to continue the long history 
of working with and for business in Victoria.

While boom times are part of our great legacy, so too, 
are the tough times. Through the Depressions of the 
1890s and 1930s, the recessions of the mid 70s, early 
80s and again in the early 90s – the Victorian Chamber  
has been here, for you, our business community.

The Victorian Chamber turns 172 this year but remains 
more relevant than ever, because we continue to look 
to the future, and we innovate to forge the path ahead.

We remain strong in our membership, and as a voice 
for Victorians, because of the one principle that is the 
true north of the Victorian Chamber – and that is the 
principle of trust. 

The Edelman Trust barometer measures four 
institutions – business, media, government and NGOs. 
And the latest findings show – admittedly after a 
testing few years through a global pandemic, war, 
supply chain breakdowns and escalating inflation –  
that only one institution retained a trustworthy level 
this past twelve months. The institution of business. 

To paraphrase the findings, in uncertain times, business 
can be trusted to push back against polarisation and 
pursue rational policies.

Business can work across governments and institutions 
to find pragmatic solutions. 

Business and industry can promote civil discourse, 
often starting with their own workforces.

Industry is the heart of the community and is critical  
in shaping prosperity. Through agility, engagement  
and passion, the only trust you have is the trust you 
have earned. Speaking from my own experience  
as a business leader, I know that this trust from the 
community and the customer is hard won. 

This pillar of trust is the foundation of the Victorian 
Chamber’s dynamic advocacy and data-led Policy  
team. Data gathering and analytics to back policy  
is a differentiating feature of the Victorian Chamber. 

Letter from the President

From the President
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Work behind the scenes includes extensive 
consultation across all sectors around Victoria,  
through metropolitan and regional roundtable 
meetings, participating in Parliamentary hearings, 
holding focus groups and member surveys. 

In this year’s State Budget, Victorian Chamber’s 
transparent and collaborative relationship with the 
Victorian Government afforded us the opportunity  
to present the case of business. And the Budget 
provided funding for five of the Victorian Chamber’s 
top 10 recommendations in our Budget submission. 

Staying relevant is key to a resilient business always, 
not just in a tight economy. And here at the Victorian 
Chamber, we must anticipate the needs not just of 
today, but of tomorrow. Therefore, and under the 
banner of good governance and in the pursuit of 
progress, we are close to establishing the Victorian 
Chamber as a company. This lengthy project, led by  
the Executive Council, will be delivered in the next  
few months. This corporate resolution will provide  
a new and nimbler framework for Victorian Chamber  
to operate and grow. The framework will guide the  
bold activity required to achieve the vision of a  
future Victoria. I want to make special mention of  
our Executive Director Strategy and General Counsel  
Mia La Burniy for all the work she has put into  
this ambition.

Thank you to the remarkable Board, and Executive 
Council, who have guided the Victorian Chamber 
through challenging times. Thanks, to our Deputy 
President Jeremy Blackshaw, and our CEO, Paul Guerra, 
for your vision, enthusiasm and thought leadership. 

And to all the staff at the Victorian Chamber,  
I extend my appreciation for your hard work, passion 
and expertise.

And most importantly to you, our members, our  
clients, our Victorian Chamber community – I say thank 
you. You are the lifeblood of this organisation. Let us 
continue to work together on this journey to ensure 
that Victoria is the best place to live, work, learn and 
operate a business. 

Adrian Kloeden 
President

Letter from the President

“Industry is the heart of the 
community and is critical in 
shaping prosperity. Through 
agility, engagement and 
passion, the only trust you 
have is the trust you have 
earned. Speaking from my 
own experience as a business 
leader, I know that this trust 
from the community and the 
customer is hard won.”

- Adrian Kloeden
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Letter from the Chief Executive

It has been another year of 
opportunity for the Victorian 
Chamber. One where we were pivotal 
in helping navigate the path for 
business in what we now know  
is a future laced with uncertainty.

As we migrated from the pandemic, we were straight 
into the headwinds of rising interest rates, supply chain 
cost increases, energy price hikes and worker shortages 
across the board.

Despite these hurdles, the Victorian business 
community exhibited remarkable adaptability and 
determination. I continue to admire their resilience  
and innovative spirit.

As the voice of Victorian business, the Chamber 
continued to advocate for policies that promote a 
favourable business environment. We engaged with 
policymakers at all levels to ensure the concerns and 
needs of businesses were heard and addressed. 

We delivered our 2022 State Election Platform, 
Powering Victoria’s Future, following extensive 
consultation across all sectors of our membership 
around Victoria including metropolitan and regional 
roundtable meetings, focus groups and member 
surveys. Of our 61 recommendations, 37 were adopted 
either in full or partially by the three major parties, 
including 23 by the Government Labor Party. 

Our comprehensive programs and campaigns focused 
on economic recovery initiatives and assisting 
businesses in pivoting their operations, enhancing 
digital capabilities and accessing financial support.  
We released `Achieving a Net-Zero Economy: Roadmap 
for Victorian Businesses’, aimed at helping to reduce 
energy prices, ensure the reliable supply of energy 
and support businesses in the transition to a net-zero 
economy and advocated for the State Government to 
produce a detailed plan on how Victoria will reach  
95 per cent renewable energy in the State by 2035.

The Chamber’s commitment to providing 
comprehensive support to Victorian businesses 
remains unwavering. We continue to offer a wide 
range of training programs, workshops and mentoring 
opportunities to empower entrepreneurs, business 
owners and employees with the skills and knowledge 
necessary for success. Our initiatives cover areas such 
as leadership development, digital transformation and 
workplace health and safety.

From the Chief Executive
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Letter from the Chief Executive

Acknowledging the importance of global markets,  
the Chamber actively facilitated international trade  
and export opportunities for Victorian businesses. 
Through strategic partnerships and our global 
certification capability, we assisted companies in 
accessing overseas markets, fostering cross-border 
collaborations, and expanding their export capabilities. 

Recognising the importance of collaboration, the 
Victorian Chamber facilitated numerous networking 
events, seminars and conferences to connect 
businesses, entrepreneurs, and industry experts with 
speakers including State Treasurer Tim Pallas, outgoing 
Australian Formula 1® Chief Executive Andrew 
Westacott, international ESG expert Bea Boccalandro 
and JS Health Founder Jessica Sepel.

These gatherings provided a platform for knowledge 
sharing, fostering partnerships and exploring growth 
opportunities. Additionally, our industry-specific forums 
allowed businesses to address sector-specific challenges 
and formulate innovative solutions, such as through 
the 36th Confederation of Asia-Pacific Chambers of 
Commerce and Industry (CACCI) Conference, which 
we delivered in November 2022, bringing together 
chambers of commerce and business leaders from 
across Australia and the Asia-Pacific region. 

This last financial year saw the commencement of our 
Chamber Change program to help women in business 
to mentor, network, empower and grow alongside each 
other. It is led by our program Champions: senior women 
in business who inspire and coach our participant 
groups through their presentations and teachings.

A recent survey of all those involved in the first 
two programs found 100 per cent of respondents’ 
organisations have benefitted from their involvement, 
100 per cent said they have increased their networking 
circle and 90 per cent said the program helped them to 
feel empowered and set up them up for success. Such 
is the success of this program that it was shortlisted 
as one of four finalists in the Gender Equity category 
in the World Chambers Competition, held at the 13th 
World Chambers Congress in Geneva in June 2023.

To that end, we were delighted to secure the co-
hosting rights to bring the 14th World Chambers 
Congress (WCC) to Melbourne in 2025. Akin to the 
`Olympic Games for Business’, this is a significant coup 
for Victoria and will open up tremendous investment 
opportunities for the State.

“The power and influence 
of business will ignite the 
next growth for Victoria. 
Together, we will continue 
working towards ensuring 
that Victoria really is the best 
place to live, to work, to learn, 
to govern, to be entertained 
and to operate a business.”

- Paul Guerra
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Letter from the Chief Executive

I want to acknowledge the Melbourne Convention 
Bureau led by CEO Julia Swanson, Victorian Minister for 
Major Events Steve Dimopoulos and Tourism Australia 
for their support in securing the event for Victoria. The 
theme of the conference will be Environmental, Social 
and Governance (ESG) and we look forward to making 
more exciting announcements as planning progresses. 

I was also proud to be part of the Chamber’s first 
endeavour into the world of podcasts with the launch 
of Business Voice. Co-hosted with Mikkayla Mossop 
from our Media and Communications Team, we spoke 
with the leaders of business about the issues important 
to business and Australia’s economy, exploring the 
critical role business will play in powering our future 
prosperity post-pandemic. 

York Park Group Founding Principal Sean Sammon 
joined every week to discuss the latest details of the 
State Election in the second half of every episode, and 
we also got to speak in detail with a compilation of 
guests from across the business landscape. 

I want to take a moment to express my deepest 
gratitude to each and every one of the Victorian 
Chamber team for their unwavering dedication, 
commitment, and hard work. These past financial years’ 
efforts are a testament to our collective efforts and the 
remarkable strides we have made together. Thank you 
for your tireless contributions. Your passion, expertise, 
and teamwork have been instrumental in driving 
our success and your dedication to excellence and 
unwavering commitment to our mission have ensured 
that we continue to provide outstanding services to our 
valued members and clients.

To the remarkable executive team - Scott Veenker, 
Chanelle Pearson, Deborah Atkins, Antoinette Truda, 
Mia La Burniy, Glenn Goodwin, Fiona MacDonald and 
Sara Marriott - thank you for your visionary leadership. 
Your guidance, strategic thinking and ability to navigate 
challenges have been vital to our organisation’s growth 
and progress and the outcomes that we have achieved 
are thanks to your stewardship.

To the esteemed members of our Board, thank you for 
your invaluable guidance and support. Your wisdom, 
experience, and strategic insights have played a pivotal 
role in shaping the Chamber’s direction. In particular 
I would like to acknowledge and thank our President 

Adrian Kloeden and Deputy President Jeremy 
Blackshaw, and of course our outgoing President 
Karyn Sobels.

Our Executive Council continue to assist our 
engagement and representation across Victoria.  
I am grateful for their support, and for the insights  
and guidance they provide, particularly around our 
policy direction.

To the team at the Australian Chamber of Commerce 
and Industry, led by President Nola Watson, Deputy 
President Mark Birrell and CEO Andrew McKellar,  
I want to thank you for the Federal support you have 
provided my team this year too. 

I do want to also thank the State Government and State 
Opposition for the access they continue to provide us, 
and the willingness they display in hearing the insights 
we gather from our network. 

Lastly, but certainly not least, I extend my heartfelt 
appreciation to our esteemed members and clients. 
Your unwavering trust and support have been the 
bedrock of our success. Your commitment to the 
Victorian Chamber has allowed us to drive positive 
change and deliver exceptional value to the business 
community and laid a solid foundation for the future. 
As my friend John Denton, General Secretary at the 
International Chamber keeps reminding me: there is  
no issue in the world that can be solved without private 
sector involvement.

The power and influence of business will ignite the next 
growth for Victoria. Together, we will continue working 
towards ensuring that Victoria really is the best place to 
live, to work, to learn, to govern, to be entertained and 
to operate a business. 

As we peer into the year ahead, collaboration will be  
a vital ingredient. We have set the framework for that, 
and we remain ready to support you as always.

Thank you for a wonderful year.

Paul Guerra 
Chief Executive



The Victorian Chamber Overview

The Victorian Chamber  
of Commerce and Industry 
(Victorian Chamber) is the 
largest and most influential 
not-for-profit business 
organisation in Victoria, 
informing and supporting a 
network of 65,000 members 
and clients across the state. 

Founded in 1851 with the aim to make 
Melbourne one of the world’s notable free 
ports, today we continue leading businesses 
of all sizes into the future via our extensive 
policy and advocacy work, and with a highly 
skilled team of business specialists who 
provide the training and support required to 
enable Victorian businesses to thrive.

The Victorian Chamber proudly champions 
business’ interests, with a strong focus 
on ensuring transformational growth, 
international trade opportunities and 
sustainability for all members.

The Victorian Chamber

Delivering benefits to 
Victorian businesses

Held 103 in-person and online events

Represented members in 40 Fair Work 
Commission appearances

Delivered five government programs, 
supporting 6,538 businesses through the 
Business Recovery and Resilience Mentoring 
program, provided over 3,000 career coaching 
sessions and matched 180 students with  
91 Victorian businesses via SummerTech LIVE

Hosted 22 Australian suppliers and 170 buyers 
at the Chamber’s mini trade show

Provided apprenticeship support to more than 
28,000 individuals and 10,000 businesses

Presented 18 policy submissions across  
a broad range of issues

	 Victorian Chamber Annual Report 2022-23     6
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Membership
Victorian businesses of all sizes  
have continued to benefit from 
Victorian Chamber membership, 
accessing an array of products  
and services from workplace  
relations advice, training, global 
documentation and more. 
Both membership and member 
engagement has grown year on  
year, demonstrating the value in 
Victorian Chamber membership – 
wherever you are in business.

 

Throughout the 2022-23 financial year we successfully 
migrated all members from legacy membership into 
our refreshed categories: Employer, Entrepreneur, Sole 
Trader and Professional. The strength of these revised 
categories led to an enhanced member experience 
with demonstrated improvements in engagement and 
retention metrics. 

By reshaping the member experience through online 
automated journeys and a personalised approach, 
members can embrace their membership to its fullest 
value. The past 12 months have seen an exponential 
growth of interest in networking opportunities with 
our Victorian Business After Dark series now regularly 
selling out. 

We have spent significant efforts engaging with Regional 
Victoria and are proud of the partnerships we have 
enhanced with our regional chamber colleagues across 
the State. 

Looking forward, we are continuing to work on 
improvements in the member portal experience and 
refreshing the suite of member benefits. Staying agile 
is key in challenging business conditions, as is ensuring 
that our membership value proposition remains 
relevant in a changing climate. We are ambitious  
about membership growth throughout metropolitan 
and regional Victoria and are excited to continue  
to support Victorian businesses into the future. 

The Victorian Chamber Overview

Sole TraderProfessionalEntrepreneurEmployer
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Policy and Advocacy 
In 2022-23, the Victorian Chamber conducted extensive policy and advocacy 
work on behalf of members. The focus was on Victoria’s economic recovery 
and a pragmatic State Election Platform. 

In September 2022, the Victorian Chamber launched 
our State Election Platform, Powering Victoria’s  
Future. The platform comprised 20 primary and  
41 secondary recommendations formed through 
member roundtables, a member survey and voter  
focus groups. As a result of our advocacy, the newly 
re-elected Victorian Government fully or partially  
adopted 23 of our 61 recommendations. 

The Chamber strengthened our data and insights  
to advocate for the business community through  
the launch of Business Voice, a monthly survey that 
collects insights from Chamber members. Business 
Voice helps the Chamber understand the Victorian 
business environment, alternating between monthly 
trend surveys and additional questions on day-to-day 
issues such as energy costs and insurance. 

Another notable outcome was the Chamber’s  
increased engagement with regional members  
through our regional roundtables. The first stage  
of the roundtables visited Traralgon, Wodonga, 
Shepparton, Mildura, Ballarat and Warrnambool 
and the insights gained informed our State Election 
Platform. Stage two of the roundtables is going back 
across the State to re-engage on a regular basis. 

In 2022-23 the Victorian Chamber delivered 18 policy 
submissions across a broad range of issues including 
inland rail, jobs and skills, perceptions of Vocational 
Education and Training, property taxes and stamp duty, 
emissions reduction and migration.

In January 2023 we released our Achieving a Net-Zero 
Economy: Roadmap for Victorian Businesses. This 
roadmap was developed to provide a comprehensive 
pathway for Victoria to achieve a net-zero economy, 
containing 25 short, medium and long-term pragmatic 
recommendations to provide certainty, stability and 
prosperity for Victoria’s economy. It was well received 
by members and government. 

As part of the 2023-24 State Budget, the Chamber 
worked with the Victorian Government to design  
a stamp duty/land tax swap for industrial and 
commercial property. This significant macroeconomic 
reform was made possible through the trusted  
role the Chamber plays on behalf of members.  
The Chamber also delivered both Federal and State 
Budget summaries for members to understand the 
implications of Budget outcomes. 

The Victorian Chamber further strengthened our 
reputation as a trusted adviser to government  
on behalf of business by preparing several policy 
submissions on key issues such as the visitor economy, 
digital economy and emissions reduction target plan. 
We also lodged submissions highlighting key priorities 
for Victorian businesses for the State Budget, Federal 
Budget and Federal Election. 

We look forward to continuing to work with our 
members, stakeholders, customers, advisory groups  
and all levels of government to ensure positive 
outcomes for Victorian business. 

The Victorian Chamber Overview
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Events 

The Victorian Chamber delivers high-quality events to support our business, 
members, and clients. There were 103 events in the past financial year either 
in-person, across regional and metropolitan Victoria, or online. 
We hosted several new or special events last year 
including Chamber Change women-in-business 
sessions, the 36th Confederation of Asia-Pacific 
Chambers of Commerce and Industry (CACCI) 
Conference, an Environmental, Social and Governance 
(ESG) event and webinar, as well as the Future Victoria 
Lunch in partnership with the Herald Sun, Melbourne 
Cup Victorian Chamber Presents (VCP) and the 
Commonwealth Games VCP. 

Significantly, securing the 36th CACCI Conference and 
gala dinner marked the Chamber’s first international 
conference and contributed to our successful bid 
for the World Chambers Congress (WCC) 2025 in 
Melbourne. Chamber Change was also nominated as  
a finalist in the Best Gender Equity Project category  
in the World Chambers Competition. 

Our event partnerships remain prominent, having  
run joint or partnered events with MCC and VCCI 
members including the AFL, Victoria Racing Club, 

Australian Grand Prix Corporation, Herald Sun, 
Melbourne Press Club, Chief of Staff Association, 
Melbourne Convention Bureau and CACCI. 

Keynote speakers in the past year included JS Health 
Founder Jessica Sepel, former Formula 1 driver Karun 
Chandhok, international ESG author and speaker  
Bea Boccalandro, federal and state ministers and 
sporting personalities across AFL, AFLW, horse  
racing and netball.

Our Business After Dark series guest numbers 
increased this last year, with registrations capped  
at 350 and selling out weeks in advance. Post-COVID 
webinar attendances remain strong, with the Fair  
Work Bill and Mental Health webinars attracting  
nearly 550 attendees each. 

The Victorian Chamber’s events continue to provide 
guests with premium networking opportunities and 
exclusive access to distinguished leaders across 
government, business, sport and other key sectors. 

The Victorian Chamber Overview
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Workplace Relations 
In 2022-23, the Victorian Chamber’s 
Workplace Relations team delivered 
valuable services to businesses 
across the State. The proactive, 
informed and practical approach 
ensured businesses could navigate 
the complex regulatory framework 
and achieve meaningful results. 

Workplace Relations Advice Line
The Workplace Relations Advice Line continued  
to be an extension of many Victorian businesses.  
The team answered thousands of enquiries covering 
award coverage, classification, wages, leave, 
performance management, misconduct, dismissals, 
conflict resolution and more. The team carefully 
interpreted the Fair Work Commission’s decisions  
to ensure all tools, templates and resources were 
accurate and up to date – refreshing more than  
121 wage spreadsheets covering every classification 
impacted by the annual wage review.

Workplace Relations Consultants
Our consultants delivered a stellar service to  
business. The team’s expertise featured in more  
than 15 mediations, 40 Fair Work Commission 
appearances, 45 compliance reviews and 35  
enterprise agreement negotiations. 

New products launched in 2022-23 including HR 
Defend, HR Resolve, and HR Partner. These outcome-
focused products ensure businesses receiving a claim, 
managing conflict, or trying to maintain a human 
resources function can do so with confidence in a 
timely manner. The team will continue to support 
business and gain insights to tailor its service.

Industrial Relations Reform 
The 2022-23 fiscal year saw significant industrial 
relations reform. The Workplace Relations team has 
ensured businesses remain informed and understand 
key changes before they happen. In December 2022, 
the Fair Work Legislation Amendment (Secure Work, 
Better Pay) Act 2022 was passed. The team delivered  
a series of webinars and briefings before and after the 
Act was passed as well as an Enterprise Bargaining 
Masterclass – all on a short turnaround. 

The team also delivered regular updates and  
briefing on topical issues including case law 
developments, best practice, and anticipated  
future industrial relations reform. 

The Victorian Chamber Overview
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Training 
The Victorian Chamber enhances the skills of organisations across all sectors 
through a flexible suite of customised and onsite training, self-paced learning, 
and nationally recognised vocational training – ranging from introductory 
courses to diplomas. 
We review and adapt our training programs annually  
to ensure they continue to meet the changing needs  
of business. 

The 2022-23 financial year was characterised by  
a post-COVID skills shortage, making an integrated  
jobs and skills strategy more critical than ever.  
The Victorian Chamber helped businesses find 
solutions by upskilling their workforce through  
a combination of our existing offering and the launch  
of new and relevant self-paced training programs. 

The new programs included: 
•	 �Mental Health for Employees
•	 �Mental Health for Managers and Supervisors
•	 �Managing and Leading a Hybrid Workforce
•	 �Managing the Safety of a Hybrid Workforce 
•	 �Exporting: Introduction
•	 Exporting: Documentation
•	 �Exporting: Money Matters

•	 �Exporting: Getting Goods to Market
•	 �Environmental, Social and Governance  

(ESG) Fundamentals, and 
•	 �Cyber Security Essentials for Business.

To address the constant evolution of technology  
and skills in industry, the Victorian Chamber also 
recognises micro-credentials as a solution to rapidly 
reskill and upskill the workforce. In 2022-23 the 
Victorian Chamber partnered with digital agency  
Credly to develop Chamber-branded digital credential 
badges – a digital showcase of earned credentials  
and their skills that is simple, trusted and can be  
easily verified in real time. 

In identifying further gaps and opportunities in the 
market the training team has also been developing  
new finance and accounting programs, set for launch 
in FY24, along with a suburban and regional calendar 
that brings our popular courses in Leadership and 
Management and Health, Safety and Wellbeing to  
the suburbs. 

The Victorian Chamber Overview
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Government Programs 
In 2022-23, the Victorian Chamber delivered five government grants and 
programs. We worked with various State and Federal Government agencies 
targeting business recovery, resilience, innovation, employment and skills. 
Programs included:

Business Recovery and Resilience Mentoring
This program provided small businesses with access  
to up to four two-hour mentoring sessions with 
qualified and experienced mentors in business  
recovery, market and supply chain diversification, 
 digital engagement and transformation, reskilling  
and retraining. The State Government-funded program 
operated from September 2020 to January 2023.  
Over this time, the Chamber facilitated a total 
of 21,184 mentoring sessions to 6,538 Victorian 
businesses. Mentees consistently offered positive 
feedback for the support they received and the  
impact the program had on their businesses. 

Multicultural Youth Graduate Internship 
In partnership with Jobs Victoria and Youth Activating 
Youth, the Chamber is delivering a graduate internship 
program to provide career opportunities for multicultural 
youth. Since commencing in December, we have 
provided more than 40 young people from culturally 
and linguistically diverse backgrounds an opportunity  
to kickstart their careers through paid six-to-eight-
week internships with Victorian businesses. 

Mid-Career Checkpoint Pilot 
This program offered professional career advice, 
coaching and access to accredited training for 
Victorians returning to work after undertaking caring 
responsibilities. The Federal Government-funded 
program targeted women aged 30-45 years and 
workers in designated COVID-affected industries  
who were looking to step back into the workforce  
or into new roles or industries. During the seven-month 
program pilot, the Chamber received more than  
2,480 applications and delivered more than 3,000 
career coaching sessions. More than 80 per cent 
of program participants went on to enrol in funded 
vocational training.

SummerTech Live 
The State Government-funded SummerTech Live 
program helps Victorian businesses solve technology-
related problems by partnering with Victoria’s tertiary 
education providers and their information technology 
students and recent graduates. For students, it is an 
opportunity to gain work-ready skills and kickstart 
their careers with a 10-12 week paid studentship. 
Over the 2022-2023 summer, the Chamber matched 
180 students with 91 Victorian businesses. The next 
program round will start in August 2023.

The Victorian Chamber Overview
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International Trade
The Victorian Chamber Global 
team directly enables members 
and clients, from small businesses 
to multinationals, to engage in 
international trade. 

The Australian Government authorises the Victorian 
Chamber to issue certificates of origin (CoOs) for 
products exported from Australia, under license to  
the Australian Chamber of Commerce and Industry 
(ACCI). The Chamber issues more CoOs than any  
other organisation in Australia, issuing both preferential 
and non-preferential certificates, as well as other 
export documentation including certificates of free  
sale and health.

In a substantial development, this year the Victorian 
Chamber developed ChamberCERTIFY, an online 
platform that allows exporters to submit and manage 
their CoOs and other export documents electronically. 
We launched the new platform in May 2023 with  
plans to move existing clients over to use the system  
by November 2023. Plans are also underway to enact  
a wider international services marketing campaign  
early in FY24 to promote both the new platform and 
the Chamber’s broader international trade services. 

The Victorian Chamber is also Australia’s National 
Guaranteeing Association for ATA carnets, the ‘passports 
for goods’ that allow temporary movement of items 
across international borders. With the re-opening 
of Australia’s borders in February 2022, ATA carnet 
business levels have bounced back to pre-COVID 
levels this year, with Victoria’s market share of issuance 
increasing steadily year on year.

The International Chamber of Commerce (ICC) 
commenced implementation of its Mercury II e-ATA 
(digitised carnets) system in January, which will 
revolutionise the ATA carnet by making transactions 
and travel easier and more efficient for businesses  
and customs authorities. The Chamber will be 
embarking on its system integration project with the 
ICC in early FY24 to support the seamless transfer  
of data between our two systems, in real-time. 

In October 2022, the Chamber’s When Buyer Met  
Seller event successfully brought together more  
than 22 Australian suppliers and 170 Melbourne- 
based Asian buyers at the Chamber’s trade show, 
showcasing specialty foods, beverages, healthcare 
and accessories. The event connected local and 
international manufacturers, suppliers, exporters, 
importers and buyers interested in entering new 
markets or extending their reach. 

The Victorian Chamber Overview
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Apprenticeship Support Australia

Apprenticeship Support Australia (ASA), as part of the Victorian Chamber,  
is contracted by the Department of Employment and Workplace Relations 
(DEWR) to deliver a suite of services supporting apprentices from pre-
commencement through to completion at no cost to individuals and business.

The key goal of the program is to make it easier  
for apprentices to engage with the apprenticeship 
system, deliver high-quality end-to-end advice and 
support, improve completion rates and minimise the 
administrative burden on business and apprentices.

During 2022-23, ASA provided direct support to more  
than 10,000 businesses, 28,000 apprentices, mentored 
5,000 apprentices at risk of non-completion and a 
further 3,000 individuals received apprenticeship 
career advice. 

In our 25th year of delivering continual apprenticeship 
services in Victoria, ASA collaborated with the Policy 
and Advocacy department to engage with DEWR 
to inform the proposed support delivery model for 
apprentices through the Australian Apprenticeships 

Services and Support Discussion Paper in November 
2022 and more recently the Future Directions for 
Australian Apprenticeship Support Services in April 2023. 

ASA apprentice Chhunly Taing was named 2022 
Apprentice of the Year at the Victorian Training 
Awards. A trailblazer for women in trades, Chhunly 
completed a Certificate in Civil Construction and has 
become a leading hand at Metro Tunnel’s Parkville 
Station employed by John Holland. 

The Victorian Chamber Overview



15     Victorian Chamber Annual Report 2022-23

Health, Safety and Wellbeing
The Victorian Chamber’s Health, 
Safety and Wellbeing team continued  
to support businesses throughout the 
2022-23 financial year, introducing  
new products to market. 

Psychosocial Health and Safety 
In partnership with EML, the Health, Safety and 
Wellbeing team developed and delivered Mental Health 
Comply, a program designed to help businesses create 
mentally healthy workplaces. The program comprises 
a gap analysis to assess compliance with proposed 
psychological health regulations and compliance code, 
a manager and leader workshop educating leaders 
to proactively monitor and act upon risks and a staff 
psychological risk survey providing businesses with 
insights into the hazards and risks present in the 
workplace.

Outside of the program the team has also worked 
with businesses to help them understand psychosocial 
hazards, their obligations, how to gain insights, how 
to implement preventative actions and initiatives and 
what to do if an incident or issue occurs. 

Occupational Health and Safety 
The team developed a range of products simplifying 
physical health and safety. Safety Walk delivers a 
physical inspection and report identifying workplace 
risks and an action plan, Safety Docs ensures compliant 
safety documentation and procedures are implemented, 
Safety Talk helps businesses hold safety conversations 
with employees and Safety Partner offers occupational 
health and safety support and guidance. 

The Victorian Chamber Overview
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Melbourne Chamber of Commerce 

The Melbourne Chamber of Commerce (MCC) is the Victorian Chamber’s 
premium membership offering. Under the guidance of our Advisory Board, 
MCC brings together many of the State’s largest, most innovative and 
successful organisations across a wide range of sectors. 

Connectivity is crucial in promoting post-pandemic 
business recovery and MCC continues to enhance 
its relationship-building capacity. We were proud to 
welcome 38 new members in the past financial year,  
a significant increase on previous years. 

The Melbourne Chamber links members with  
other enterprises, leaders and decision-makers  
through our vast network and exclusive events. 
Members also participate in numerous forums  
to guide our advocacy and drive outcomes for  
Victoria’s prosperity and success. 

Events held during the year included leadership  
lunches with Lord Mayor Sally Capp, Deputy Premier 
Jacinta Allan, Gary Brown (Delaware North), Saul 
Cannon (Port of Melbourne), Lorie Argus (Melbourne 
Airport) and Jonathan Spear (Infrastructure Victoria). 

Our members also enjoyed exclusive corporate 
hospitality events at the Australian Open, AFL Finals 
and a Food and Wine Experience with guest chef  
Shane Delia and a best practice tour of The LUME, 
Royal Flying Doctor Service, Melbourne Park and  
Port of Melbourne as part of their membership benefits.

The Victorian Chamber Overview
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Media and Communications 
The Media and Communications  
team continued to advance the  
reach and influence of the Victorian 
Chamber during the 2022-23  
financial year. The Chamber had  
2,821 media mentions, reaching  
a total audience of more than  
89 million people. This coverage is 
equivalent to an advertising spend  
of $18.89 million across television, 
online and print media and radio. 

It included: 
•	 18 live-to-air television interviews.
•	 150 television news appearances or mentions.
•	 10 opinion editorials published in major newspapers.
•	 27 front page newspaper mentions.
•	 244 newspaper mentions.
•	 43 live radio interviews.
•	 29 media releases.

The Chamber continues to maintain strong, positive 
relationships with media outlets across Australia 
and enhanced our reputation as the ‘go-to voice’ 
for business commentary in the State. Over the 
past 12 months, the Chamber has provided a strong 
perspective from business on a range of issues 
including growing Regional Victoria, state and federal 
budgets, skilled migration and worker shortages, 
return to office issues, the rising costs of business 
and living and increasing interest rates, jobs and 
skills, Melbourne’s post-COVID CBD recovery and 
Environmental, Social and Governance matters (ESG).

The Media and Communications team also manages 
the Chamber’s social media channels to communicate 
with a wider audience across various platforms and 
deliver key messages, promote events, share news  
and showcase members. From 1 July 2022 to 30 June 
2023, our social media channels enjoyed significant 
growth and engagement with increases in follower 
numbers across all platforms except Twitter – which  
is due to their internal structure changes and culling  
of millions of unused and bot accounts.

The Victorian Chamber Overview
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The Media and Communications team is responsible for the Victorian 
Chamber’s website news and content, delivering relevant stories, reports  
and communications to our members and the public every day. 

From 1 July 2022 to 30 June 2023, the website 
attracted 637,500 unique users and 1.63 million views.

The Media and Communications team also delivered 
a successful Business Voice podcast, which attracted 
27,000 streams over six episodes.

The Victorian Chamber website’s News and Media 
section published more than 300 articles in the past 
financial year, featuring the latest business news  
and Chamber updates in a timely and informative 
manner. We also published 14 member stories which 
showcased both Victorian Chamber and Melbourne 
Chamber members through in-depth interviews and 
video footage.

Our readership was kept abreast of the latest business 
grants and incentives, state and federal budget 
announcements, tax focus areas, mental health 
reform and requirements, wage and award decisions, 
WorkCover changes, apprentice subsidies and more 
business-focused issues.

From weekly workplace relations case studies to 
personal interest stories, member video profiles and 
events coverage, the team also produced compelling 
digital and long-form content.

The exposure of the Chamber’s news offering was 
aided by the launch of a new e-newsletter, Business 
First, which delivers news articles, CEO updates, event 
and training listings and member offers directly to the 
Chamber’s database of members and clients each week.

The Victorian Chamber Overview
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Consolidated 
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The Committee of Management presents the expenditure report as required under subsection 255(2A) on the 
reporting unit for the year ended 30 June 2023.

Categories of expenditures 2023 ($) 2022 ($)

Remuneration and other employment-related costs and 
expenses – employees

24,045,602 22,060,083

Advertising 806,194 1,983,407

Operating costs 4,334,586 10,079,822

Legal costs 17,764 54,574

Name and title of designated officer:

Paul Guerra, Chief Executive

Dated: 19th October 2023

Signature of designated officer:

Victorian Chamber of Commerce and Industry 
ABN 37 650 959 904

Report required under subsection 255(2A)
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The Committee of Management presents its Operating Report on the Victorian Chamber of Commerce and Industry 
(Victorian Chamber) for the year ended 30 June 2023.

The Members of Committee of Management
The Members of the Committee of Management (Board of Directors) comprises of elected representatives of the 
Executive Council of the Victorian Chamber who form the Board of Directors. The Past President of the Victorian 
Chamber is eligible for election to the Board of Directors in the office of Past President, under rule 22A which came 
into effect on 18 November 2015.

The Directors present their report together with the financial report of the Victorian Chamber for the year ended 
30 June 2023 and the Auditor’s Report thereon.

The persons who held office as members of the Board of Directors and officers of the Victorian Chamber during the 
reporting period were:

Name of Officer Office Held Appointed Resigned

Mr Adrian Kloeden President 19.11.2013

Mr Jeremy Blackshaw Director (Deputy President) 14.11.2019

Ms Karyn Sobels Director (Immediate Past President) 22.11.2011

Mr Brian Negus Director 17.11.2016 15.11.2022

Ms Helen Fairclough Director 04.07.2018

Mr Paul Guerra Secretary/Chief Executive 03.02.2020

Ms Kylie Warne Director 14.11.2019

Ms Kathryn Mannix Director 15.11.2022

Ms Carlene Wilson Director 31.03.2021

Mr Brendan Britten Director 15.11.2022

Mr Peter Radoll Director 15.11.2022

Note: During the financial period, on 15.11.2022, Adrian Kloeden was appointed President and Jeremy Blackshaw 
was appointed Deputy President and Karyn Sobels was appointed Immediate Past President. Ms Karyn Sobels was 
granted a leave of absence effective 08.09.2023.

Victorian Chamber of Commerce and Industry 
ABN 37 650 959 904
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Meetings – Board of Directors
The number of meetings attended by each of the members of the Board of Director and officers of the Victorian 
Chamber during the financial year was:

Name of Officer Number of Meetings  
Held while in Office

Meetings  
Attended

Mr Adrian Kloeden 11 10

Mr Jeremy Blackshaw 11 10

Ms Karyn Sobels 11 10

Mr Brian Negus 5 3

Ms Helen Fairclough 11 10

Mr Paul Guerra 11 10

Ms Kylie Warne 11 11

Ms Kathryn Mannix 6 5

Ms Carlene Wilson 11 10

Mr Brendan Britten 6 4

Dr Peter Radoll 6 6

Remuneration Paid to Officers
The salary ranges of the five highest paid officers of the Victorian Chamber for the year ended 30 June 2023 were:

Remuneration ($000’s) Non-cash benefits ($000’s)

Name of Officer 0-50 51-100 101-150 451-500 601-650 0-50 51-100

Mr Adrian Kloeden

Ms Karyn Sobels 

Mr Jeremy Blackshaw 

Ms Helen Fairclough

Mr Paul Guerra

Victorian Chamber of Commerce and Industry 
ABN 37 650 959 904

Operating Report
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Superannuation Trustees

Name of Officer  
or Member

Position  
Held

Superannuation  
Fund

Nominated by Victorian 
Chamber or other Body

Mr Graham Sherry Member Vision Super Victorian Chamber

Mr Jeremy Johnson Member CARE Super Victorian Chamber

Principal Activities
The principal activities of the Victorian Chamber during the financial year were to assist the interests of Victorian 
business members and contributors via representation and advocacy to Government and policy makers along with 
providing membership services primarily involving industrial relations, information, advice, networking and value-
added professional services. The Victorian Chamber makes a positive difference to Victoria’s economy, environment 
and ultimately the community. There was no significant change in the nature of these activities during the period.

Review and Results of Operations
The Victorian Chamber recorded a consolidated deficit for the year ended 30 June 2023 of $(4,337,483) (2022: 
surplus of $1,879,618). The consolidated net assets at 30 June 2023 totalled $89,105,873 (2022: $93,443,356).

Membership of Victorian Chamber
As at 30 June 2023, the Victorian Chamber had 5,415 paid members (2022: 20,479 including complimentary 
members from COVID).

Employees of Victorian Chamber	
As at 30 June 2023, the total number of employees was 193 (2022: 202).

Board Committees
The following Board Committees operated during the reporting period:

Audit and Risk Committee
Kylie Warne (Chair)	 (resigned as Chair 15.11.2022) 
Karyn Sobels 		  (resigned 15.11.2022) 
Brendan Britten (Chair)	 (appointed 15.11.2022)		

	 Carlene Wilson		   
	 Adrian Kloeden		

Investment Committee
Adrian Kloeden (Chair)	 (resigned as Chair 15.11.2022) 
Karyn Sobels (Chair) 	 (leave of absence 08.09.2023) 
Brian Negus		  (resigned 15.11.2022) 

	 Jeremy Blackshaw	  
	 Kathryn Mannix 

HR & Remuneration Committee
Helen Fairclough (Chair) 
Karyn Sobels		  (resigned 15.11.2022) 

	 Adrian Kloeden	  
	 Peter Radoll

Victorian Chamber of Commerce and Industry 
ABN 37 650 959 904
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Events after the Consolidated Balance Sheet Date
No matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly affected or could 
significantly affect the operations of the Victorian Chamber in future financial years.

Manner of Resignation
Rule 10 provides for the process of resignations.

(a)	 (i)	� A member may resign from membership of the Victorian Chamber by written notice addressed and 
delivered to the Secretary. Such notice shall be taken to have been received by the Victorian Chamber 
when delivered to the Secretary.

	 (ii)	� A notice of resignation that has been received by the Victorian Chamber is not invalid because it was  
not addressed and delivered to the Secretary.

	 (iii)	� A resignation from membership of the Victorian Chamber is valid even if it is not effected in accordance 
with paragraph (i) hereof if the member is informed in writing by or on behalf of the Victorian Chamber 
that the resignation has been accepted.

(b)	 A notice of resignation from membership of the Victorian Chamber takes effect:

	 (i)	 where the member ceases to be eligible to become a member of the Victorian Chamber:
		�  1. �	 on the day on which the notice is received by the Victorian Chamber; or
		�  2. �	� on the day specified in the notice, which is a day not earlier than the day when the member ceases  

to be eligible to become a member;

		  whichever is later; or

	 (ii) 	 in any other case:
		�  1.	 at the expiration of 2 weeks after the notice is received by the Victorian Chamber; or
		�  2.	 on the day specified in the notice; whichever is later.

(c)	� If a member ceases to be engaged in or as an employer in the industry the membership of such member 
may, subject to the member being accorded natural justice, be determined summarily by resolution of the 
Executive Council, provide however that such determination shall not affect the liability of the member  
to pay all monies owing by the member to the Victorian Chamber.

(d)	� Any dues payable but not paid by a former member of the Victorian Chamber, in relation to a period before 
the member’s resignation or termination from the Victorian Chamber took effect, may be sued for and 
recovered in the name of the Victorian Chamber in a court of competent jurisdiction, as a debt due to  
the Victorian Chamber..

Victorian Chamber of Commerce and Industry 
ABN 37 650 959 904
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Manner of Resignation (continued)
(e)	� If a member becomes unfinancial in accordance with Rule 9 his/her name may be struck off the Register 

of Members by Order of the Executive Council. Any member shall cease to be a member of the Victorian 
Chamber as soon as his/her name shall have been struck off the Register of Members by Order of the 
Executive Council and not sooner. Provided that where a member has become unfinancial and at least 
fourteen (14) days before the Executive Council orders that the member be struck off the Register of 
Members, the Secretary shall advise the person, in writing, that if he/she fails to pay the outstanding 
subscriptions within fourteen (14) days of the date of the letter then he/she will be struck off the Register  
of Members without further notice. If the person pays the outstanding subscriptions within that time then  
he/she shall not be struck off the Register of Members.

(f)	� Any member who shall be expelled from the Victorian Chamber under the Provisions of Rule 40 hereof  
shall thereupon cease to be a member.

(g)	� Members ceasing to be such from any cause whatsoever have no claim of any kind – monetary or otherwise – 
on the Victorian Chamber or its assets.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Committee of Management.

Paul Guerra, 
Secretary and Chief Executive at Melbourne,  
19 October 2023

Victorian Chamber of Commerce and Industry 
ABN 37 650 959 904
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Note 2023 2022

$ $

Revenue

Membership subscriptions 2(a)(d) 6,568,984 4,717,400

Other revenue 2(b)(d) 26,841,579  34,444,452

Other income 2(c) 3,486,089 5,496,670

Total revenue and other income 36,896,652 44,658,522

Expenses

Operating expenses 4,334,586 3,595,956

Employee benefits 4 24,045,602 22,060,083

Affiliation fees 3 642,099 636,761

Depreciation and amortisation expense  2,754,176 3,869,834

Federal & State Government programs 1,542,570 1,049,927

Occupancy expenses 954,561 918,511

Consultancy fees 1,866,019 1,312,397

Provision for expected credit losses and bad debts 3(b) 227,682 55,821

Information, communication and technology expenses 1,441,614 1,825,126

Interest expense 3(c) 605,461 671,434

Loss on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 61,736 4,005,301

Other administration 3 2,758,029 2,777,753

Total expenditure 41,234,135 42,778,904

Current year (deficit)/surplus before tax 3 (4,337,483) 1,879,618

Income tax expense 1(b) - -

Current year (deficit)/surplus after tax (4,337,483) 1,879,618

Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - -

Net current year (deficit)/surplus (4,337,483) 1,879,618

Total comprehensive income (4,337,483) 1,879,618

Victorian Chamber of Commerce and Industry 
ABN 37 650 959 904
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Assets, Liabilities and Equity Note 2023 2022

$ $
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 6 13,449,920  18,571,338

Trade and other receivables 7 3,633,198 7,486,272

Financial instruments 8 3,486,875 1,486,875

Prepayments 9 943,243 1,286,206

Total current assets 21,513,236 28,830,691

Non-current Assets
Financial instruments 8 83,164,124 82,048,479

Intangible assets 10 231,720 403,834

Property, plant and equipment 11 1,583,500 2,279,910

Right-of-use asset 15(a) 842,032 13,235,353

Total non-current assets 85,821,376 97,967,594
Total assets 107,334,612 126,798,285

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities  

Trade and other payables 12 5,220,774 5,111,754

Contract liabilities 13 4,557,688 7,780,323

Lease liabilities 15(b) 2,198,425 1,697,420

Provisions 14 2,723,797 2,520,611

Total current liabilities 14,700,684 17,110,108

Non-current Liabilities
Lease liabilities 15(b) 2,990,916 15,846,978

Provisions 14 537,139 397,843

Total non-current liabilities 3,528,055 16,244,821
Total liabilities 18,228,739 33,354,929
Net assets 89,105,873 93,443,356

EQUITY  

Accumulated surplus 89,105,873 93,443,356

Total equity 89,105,873 93,443,356

Victorian Chamber of Commerce and Industry 
ABN 37 650 959 904
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 

Accumulated surplus Total

$ $

Balance at 1 July 2021 91,563,738 91,563,738

Profit attributable to members of the Consolidated Group 1,879,618 1,879,618

Balance at 30 June 2022 93,443,356 93,443,356

Deficit attributable to members of the Consolidated Group (4,337,483) (4,337,483)

Balance at 30 June 2023 89,105,873 89,105,873

Victorian Chamber of Commerce and Industry 
ABN 37 650 959 904
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Note 2023 2022

$ $
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received

Receipts from members and others 17,022,798  24,633,128

Receipts from Federal and State Government programs 18,608,571 17,324,705

Dividends received 466,887 453,703

Interest received 109,721  49,212

Cash used

Payments to suppliers and employees (42,142,674) (41,816,913)

Net cash (used) / generated from operating activities 20 (5,934,697) 643,835

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Cash received

Sale of investments 6,341,118  7,096,553

Cash used

Purchase of investments (3,092,050) (6,195,180)

Purchase of property, plant, equipment and intangible assets (150,679) (464,659)

Net cash generated from investing activities 3,098,389  436,714

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Cash received

Cash used

Repayment of lease liability (2,285,110) (1,984,565)

Net cash (used by) financing activities (2,285,110) (1,984,565)

Net (decrease) in cash held (5,121,418)  (904,016)

Cash & cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period 18,571,338 19,475,354

Cash & cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period 6 13,449,920  18,571,338

Victorian Chamber of Commerce and Industry 
ABN 37 650 959 904
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1.	� Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
	� This financial report includes the consolidated financial statements and notes of the Victorian Chamber of 

Commerce and Industry (“Victorian Chamber”) and controlled entities (“Consolidated Group” or “Group”).

	� The consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue on 19 October 2023 by the Board of Directors.

	 Entity information
	� The Victorian Chamber is a registered Employer Association under the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) 

Act 2009, unincorporated and domiciled in Australia. The Victorian Chamber is considered a ‘reporting unit’ 
for the purposes of section 242 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009.

	� In accordance with the requirements of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009, the attention  
of members is drawn to the provisions of subsections (1) to (3) of section 272, which reads as follows:

	 1.	� A member of a reporting unit, or the Commissioner, may apply to the reporting unit for specified 
prescribed information in relation to the reporting unit to be made available to the person making  
the application;

	 2.	� The application must be in writing and must specify the period within which, and the manner in which, 
the information is to be made available. The period must not be less than 14 days after the application  
is given to the reporting unit: with; 

	 3.	 A reporting unit must comply with an application made under subsection (1).

	� Information prescribed by the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Regulations 2009 is available to members 
on request.

	 Basis of Preparation

	 Reporting Basis and Conventions
	� The consolidated financial statements are general purpose financial statements and have been prepared  

in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting 
Standards Board (AASB) that apply for the reporting period, and the Fair Work (Registered Organisation) Act 
2009. For the purpose of preparing the general purpose financial statements, the Victorian Chamber  
is a not-for-profit entity.

	� Australian Accounting Standards set out accounting policies that the AASB has concluded would result  
in a financial report containing relevant and reliable information about transactions, events and conditions 
to which they apply. Material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of this financial report are 
presented below. They have been consistently applied unless otherwise stated.

	� The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and in accordance with the 
historical cost, except for certain assets and liabilities measured at fair value, as explained in the accounting 
policies below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair values of the consideration given in exchange 
for assets. Except where stated, no allowance is made for the effect of changing prices on the results or 
the financial position. The consolidated financial statements are presented in Australian dollars have been 
rounded to the nearest dollar.

Victorian Chamber of Commerce and Industry 
ABN 37 650 959 904
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1.	� Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
	 (a)	 Principles of Consolidation

	� The consolidated financial statements incorporate all of the assets, liabilities and results of the parent 
(Victorian Chamber) and all of the subsidiaries (including any structured entities). Subsidiaries are 
entities the parent’s controls. The parent controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to, 
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns from  
its power over the entity.

	� The assets, liabilities and results of all subsidiaries are fully consolidated into the consolidated financial 
statements of the Group from the date on which control is obtained by the Group. The consolidation of a 
subsidiary is discontinued from the date control ceases. Intergroup transactions, balances and unrealised 
gains and losses on transactions between group entities are fully eliminated on consolidation. Accounting 
policies of subsidiaries have been changed and adjustments made where necessary to ensure uniformity 
of the accounting policies adopted by the Group.

	 (b)	 Income Tax
	� As a registered Employer Association, the Victorian Chamber is exempt from income tax in accordance 

with Section 50-15 of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997.

	 (c)	 Property, Plant and Equipment
	� Each class of Leasehold Improvements, Plant and Equipment is carried at cost less any accumulated 

depreciation, where applicable.

	 Leasehold Improvements
	 �Leasehold Improvements are measured on the cost basis less depreciation and impairment losses.  

The carrying amount of leasehold improvements is reviewed annually by directors to ensure it is not in 
excess of the recoverable amount from those assets. If any impairment indicators exist, the recoverable 
amount is assessed on the basis of the expected net cash flows which will be received from the assets 
employment and subsequent disposal. The expected net cash flows are discounted to present values  
in determining the recoverable amount.

	 Plant and Equipment
	� Plant and equipment is measured on the cost basis less depreciation and impairment losses. The carrying 

amount of plant and equipment is reviewed annually by directors to ensure it is not in excess of the 
recoverable amount from those assets.

	� If any impairment indicators exist, the recoverable amount is assessed on the basis of the expected net 
cash flows which will be received from the assets employment and subsequent disposal. The expected 
net cash flows are discounted to present values in determining the recoverable amount.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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1.	� Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
	 Depreciation

�	� The depreciable amount of all fixed assets is depreciated on a straight line basis over their useful lives  
to the Group commencing from the time the asset is held ready for use. The depreciation rates used  
for each class of depreciable asset are:

	 Class of fixed asset	 Useful life 
	 Leasehold Improvements	 10 years 
	 Plant and Equipment	 2 – 5 years

	 Assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

	� An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying 
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

	� Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. These 
gains and losses are included in profit or loss.

	 (d)	 Financial Instruments 
	� Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the 

contractual provisions of the instrument. For financial assets, this is the date that the Group commits 
itself to either the purchase or sale of the asset (ie trade date accounting is adopted).

	� Financial instruments (except for trade receivables) are initially measured at fair value plus transaction 
costs, except where the instrument is classified at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), in which 
case transaction costs are expensed to profit or loss immediately. Where available, quoted prices in an 
active market are used to determine fair value. In other circumstances, valuation techniques are adopted.

	� Financial Assets measured at Amortised Cost

	� The Group classifies its financial assets at amortised cost only if both of the following criteria are met:

	 (a)	� The asset is held within a business model with the objective collective of the contractual cash flows; 
and

	 (b)	� The contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal 
and interest on the principal outstanding.

	� Recognition and derecognition

	� Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the financial instrument.

	� Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset 
expire, or when the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards are transferred. A financial 
liability is derecognised when it is extinguished, discharged, cancelled or expires.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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1.	� Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
	 (d)	 Financial Instruments (continued)

	� Classification and initial measurement of financial assets

	� Financial assets are classified according to their business model and the characteristics of their 
contractual cash flows. Except for those trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing 
component and are measured at the transaction, all financial assets are initially measured at fair value 
adjusted for transaction costs where applicable.

	� Subsequent measurement of financial assets

	� For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets, other than those designated and effective  
as hedging instruments, are classified into the following two categories: 

	� •	 Financial assets at amortised cost, and

	� •	 FVTPL.

	� All income relating to financial assets that are recognised in profit or loss are presented within other 
income (Note 2(c)), losses on financial asset are recognised as a separate line item in the profit or loss 
except for impairment of trade receivables which is presented in provision for expected credit loss  
as well as the impairment of related party loans.

	� Financial assets at amortised cost

	� Financial assets with contractual cash flows representing solely payments of principal and interest and 
held within a business model of ‘hold to collect’ contractual cash flows are accounted for at amortised 
cost using the effective interest method. The Group’s trade and most other receivables fall into this 
category of financial instruments.

	� Financial assets at FVTPL

	� The Group’s investment in equity instruments are through a managed fund. The Group does not have the 
option to irrevocably elect to account for these as Equity fair value through other comprehensive income  
due to the limited life of a managed fund.

	� Impairment of financial assets 

	� AASB 9’s forward looking impairment model applies to the Group’s investments at amortised cost.  
The application of the impairment model depends on whether there has been a significant increase  
in credit risk.

	� Trade and other receivables and contract assets 

	� The Group makes use of a simplified approach in accounting for impairment of trade and other 
receivables as well as contract assets and records the loss allowance at the amount equal to the expected 
lifetime credit losses. In using this practical expedient, the Group uses its historical experience, external 
indicators and forward-looking information to calculate the expected credit losses using a provision 
matrix. At 30 June 2023, the Group applies a standardised percentage across all debtors under the 
expected credit loss model.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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1.	� Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
	 (e)	 Leases

	 �At inception of a contract, the Group assesses if the contract contains or is a lease. If there is a lease 
present, a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability are recognised by the Group where 
the Group is a lessee. However, all contracts that are classified as short-term leases (i.e. a lease with a 
remaining lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low-value assets are recognised as an operating 
expenses on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

	� Initially the lease liability is measured at the present value of the lease payments still to be paid at the 
commencement date. The lease payments are discounted at the interest rate implicit in the lease.  
If this rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate.

	 Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability are as follows:

	 –	 fixed lease payments less any lease incentives;
	 –	� variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or rate  

at the commencement date;
	 –	 the amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;
	 –	 the exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the options;
	 –	 lease payments under extension options, if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the options;
		  and
	 –	� payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an option  

to terminate the lease.

	� The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the 
lease liability (using the effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the 
lease payments made. 

	� The Group remeasures the lease liability (and makes corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use 
asset) whenever:

	 –	� The lease term has changed or there is a significant event or change in circumstances resulting 
in a change in the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case the lease liability is 
remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate.

	 –	� The lease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or a change in expected payment 
under a guaranteed residual value, in which cases the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the 
revised lease payments using an unchanged discount rate (unless the lease payments change is due 
to a change in a floating interest rate, in which case a revised discount rate is used).The lease contract 
is modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in which case the 
lease liability is remeasured based on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised 
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

	 –	� The Group did not make any such adjustments during the periods presented. The right-of-use assets 
comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at or 
before the commencement day, less any lease incentives received and any initial direct costs.  
They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
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1.	� Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
	� (e)	 Leases (continued)

	 �Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful life of the underlying 
asset. If a lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects 
that the Group expects to exercise a purchase option, the related right-of-use asset is depreciated over 
the useful life of the underlying asset. The depreciation starts at the commencement date of the lease. 

	 The right-of-use assets are presented as a separate line in the statement of financial position. 

	� The Group applies AASB 136 to determine whether a right-of-use asset is impaired and accounts for  
any identified impairment loss as described in the ‘Property, Plant and Equipment’ policy. 

	� Variable rents that do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the measurement the lease 
liability and the right-of-use asset. The related payments are recognised as an expense in the period  
in which the event or condition that triggers those payments. 

	� (f)	 Employee Benefits

	� Short-term employee benefits
	� Provision is made for the Group’s obligation for short-term employee benefits (as defined in AASB 119: 

Employee Benefits). Short-term employee benefits are benefits (other than termination benefits) that are 
expected to be settled wholly before 12 months after the end of the annual reporting period in which 
the employees render the related service, including wages, salaries and sick leave. Short-term employee 
benefits are measured at the (undiscounted) amounts expected to be paid when the obligation is settled.

	� The Group’s obligations for short-term employee benefits such as wages, salaries and sick leave are 
recognised as a part of current trade and other payables in the statement of financial position. The 
Group’s obligations for employees’ leave and long service leave entitlements are recognised as provisions 
in the statement of financial position.

	� Other long-term employee benefits
	� Provision is made for employees’ long service leave and annual leave entitlements not expected to be 

settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the annual reporting period in which the employees 
render the related service. Other long-term employee benefits are measured at the present value of the 
expected future payments to be made to employees. Expected future payments incorporate anticipated 
future wage and salary levels, durations of service and employee departures and are discounted at rates 
determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that 
have maturity dates that approximate the terms of the obligations.

	� Any remeasurements for changes in assumptions of obligations for other long-term employee benefits  
are recognised in profit or loss in the periods in which the changes occur.

	� The Group’s obligations for long-term employee benefits are presented as non-current provisions in  
its statement of financial position, except where the Group does not have an unconditional right to defer 
settlement for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period, in which case the obligations  
are presented as current provisions.
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1.	� Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
	� (g)	 Cash and cash equivalents

	� Cash and cash equivalents include: cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks, and other short-term 
highly liquid investments which are readily convertible to cash and are subject to an insignificant risk 
of changes in value. Cash and cash equivalents are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash 
commitments rather than for investment purposes.

	� (h)	 Goods and Services Tax (GST)
	� Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount  

of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO). Receivables and payables 
are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of GST recoverable 
from, or payable to, the ATO is included with other receivables or payables in the statement of  
financial position.

	� Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing  
or financing activities, which are recoverable from or payable to the ATO, are presented as operating 
cash flows included in receipts from customers or payments to suppliers.

	� (i)	 Trade and Other Receivables
	� Trade and other receivables include amounts due from customers for goods sold and services 

performed in the ordinary course of business. Receivables expected to be collected within 12 months 
of the end of the reporting period are classified as current assets. All other receivables are classified  
as non-current assets.

	� Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised 
cost using the effective interest method, less any provision for impairment. Refer to Note 1(d) for further 
discussion on the determination of impairment losses.

	� (j)	 Trade and Other Payables
	� Trade and other payables represent the liabilities for goods and services received by the entity that 

remain unpaid at the end of the reporting period. The balance is recognised as a current liability with  
the amounts normally paid within 30 days of recognition of the liability.

	� (k)	 Revenue
	� The Group enters into various arrangements where it receives consideration from another party. These 

arrangements include consideration in the form of membership subscriptions, capitation fees, levies, 
grants, and donations. 

	� The timing of recognition of these amounts as either revenue or income depends on the rights  
and obligations in those arrangements.

	�
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1.	� Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
	� (k)	 Revenue (continued)

	 i.	 Revenue from contracts with customers
	�	�  Where the Group has a contract with a customer, the Group recognises revenue when or as it 

transfers control of goods or services to the customer. The Group accounts for an arrangement  
as a contract with a customer if the following criteria are met:

		  •	� the arrangement is enforceable; and

		  •	� the arrangement contains promises (that are also known as performance obligations) to  
transfer goods or services to the customer (or to other parties on behalf of the customer) that  
are sufficiently specific so that it can be determined when the performance obligation has  
been satisfied.

	 ii.	 Membership revenue
		�  For membership subscription arrangements that meet the criteria to be contracts with customers, 

revenue is recognised when the promised goods or services transfer to the customer as a member  
of the Victorian Chamber.

		�  Where there is more than one distinct good or service promised in the membership subscription, 
the Group allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation based on the relative 
standalone selling prices of each promised good or service. In performing this allocation, standalone 
selling prices are estimated if there is no observable evidence of the price that the Group charges  
for that good or service in a standalone sale. 

		�  When a performance obligation is satisfied, which is either when the customer obtains control  
of the good (for example, event tickets) or as the service transfers to the customer (for example, 
member services or training course), the Group recognises revenue at the amount of the transaction 
price that was allocated to that performance obligation. 

		�  For member subscriptions paid annually in advance, the Group has elected to apply the practical 
expedient to not adjust the transaction price for the effects of a significant financing component 
because the period from when the customer pays and the good or services will transfer to the 
customer will be one year or less. 

		�  When a member subsequently purchases additional goods or services from the Group at their 
standalone selling price, the Group accounts for those sales as a separate contract with a customer.

	 iii.	� Dividend and interest revenue 
		�  Dividends, distribution and interest revenue is recognised when the right to receive a dividend  

has been established. Dividends received from associates are accounted for in accordance with  
the equity method of accounting.
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1.	� Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
	� (k)	 Revenue (continued)

	 iv.	� Federal and State Government program revenue (including grants) 
		�  Grants received are accounted for under AASB 15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers 

when there are enforceable and sufficiently specific performance obligations embedded in the 
grant arrangement. Revenue is recognised from each grant as the Group satisfies each relevant 
performance obligation.

		�  Grants that are not recognised under AASB 15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers are 
recognised under AASB 1058: Income for not-for-profit entities, whereby consideration is received 
by the Group to enable the entity to further its objectives. The Group recognises each of these 
amounts of consideration as income when the consideration is received (which is when the Group 
obtains control of the cash) because, based on the rights and obligations in each arrangement 
the arrangements do not meet the criteria to be contracts with customers because either the 
arrangement is unenforceable or lacks sufficiently specific promises to transfer goods or services  
to the customer.

	 v.	� Other revenue
		�  Training and professional service revenue for scheduled courses is recognised on an accruals  

basis when the performance obligation being delivering the course and/or service to the customer  
has occurred.

		�  Rental income whereby the Group as a lessor, does not transfer substantially all the risks and 
rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising 
is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the relevant lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in 
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset 
and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents  
are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

		  All revenue is stated net of the amount of GST.

	 (l)	 Impairment of Assets

	� At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying values of its tangible and intangible assets to 
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have been impaired. If such an indication 
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell 
and value in use, is compared to the asset’s carrying value. Any excess of the asset’s carrying value over 
its recoverable amount is expensed to profit or loss. Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable 
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit 
to which the asset belongs.
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1.	� Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
	� (m)	 Intangible assets

	 Software 
	 �Software with finite lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation  

and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their 
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of 
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective 
basis. Software with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less 
accumulated impairment losses.

	 Assets are amortised between 3-5 years.

	 Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense when incurred.

	� (n)	 Provisions

	� Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation, as a result of past 
events, for which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will result and that outflow can  
be reliably measured.

	 (o)	 Investments

	� Investments in Associates
	� An associate is an entity that the Group has significant influence but not control or joint control. 

Investments in associate companies are recognised in the consolidated financial statements by applying 
the equity method of accounting. The equity method of accounting recognises the Group’s share of 
post-acquisition reserves of its associates. When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or 
exceeds its interest, which includes any long-term interest that, in substance, form part of the Group’s 
net investment in the associate, the Group does not recognise any further losses, unless it has incurred  
a contractual obligation to contribute further funds.

	� Investments in Subsidiaries
	� Subsidiaries are entities over which the Victorian Chamber has power to govern the financial and 

operating policies so as to gain benefit from its activities, generally by a shareholding, giving rise to  
a majority of voting rights. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred 
and deconsolidated from the date control ceases. In preparing the consolidated financial statements 
transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between groups are eliminated.

	 (p)	 Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments

	� The Directors evaluate estimates and judgments incorporated into the financial report based on 
historical knowledge and best available current information. Estimates assume a reasonable expectation 
of future events and are based on current trends and economic data, obtained both externally and within 
the Group. Management is required to exercise judgment in the process of applying accounting policies. 
In preparing the financial statement the following key judgements were made:
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1.	� Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
	 (p)	 Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments (continued)

	 Key estimates – impairment testing
	� The assessment of the recoverable amount of non-current assets allocated to the Group’s cash-

generating unit, to which the entirety of the Group’s intangible assets, plant & equipment and right-
of-use assets are allocated to involves key estimates and judgements. The recoverable amount of the 
Group’s cash-generating unit is most sensitive to achieving the Group’s EBITDA forecasts. The Group 
has been impacted by the reduction in scope of significant contracts and while the Group could reduce 
expenditure when required, the EBITDA position is inherently uncertain due to the business needing to 
be profitable, to justify no impairment, from its current loss-making position. 

	� The ability of the Group to achieve its EBITDA forecasts is considered the key source of estimation 
uncertainty in estimating the recoverable amount of the Group’s cash-generating unit. If the Group 
is unable to achieve its forecasted EBITDA forecasts, an impairment could be recognised in future 
reporting periods.

��	 Key estimates – provision for expected credit loss
	� Included in Note 7, the trade receivables at the end of the reporting period is an amount receivable from 

customers during the current financial year amounting to $1,939,334 (2022: $6,105,698) for the Group. 
Management have examined doubtful debts provision, which is determined based on the expected credit 
loss model as defined under AASB 9. This takes into effect the historical losses over the past years on 
relative debtors, and is then adjusted for current and potential future events.

	� Key judgements – lease term and option to extend under AASB 16
	� The lease term is defined as the non-cancellable period of a lease together with both periods covered 

by an option to extend the lease if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and also 
periods covered by an option to terminate the lease if the lessee is reasonably certain not to exercise 
that option. The decision on whether or not the options to extend are reasonably going to be exercised 
is a key management judgement that the Group will make. The Group determines the likelihood to 
exercise on a lease-by-lease basis, looking at various factors such as which assets are strategic and 
which are key to the future strategy of the Group. As part of key management judgements, the Group 
continually assesses the likelihood of exercising options to extend and where necessary, applies a change 
in judgement if it is assessed that the option to extend will be exercised or no longer exercised.

	 (q)	 New accounting standards and interpretations 

	� The Group has applied all new standards and amendments for the annual reporting period commencing  
1 July 2022. These included:

	 •	� AASB 2020-3: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Annual Improvements  
2018-2020 and Other Amendments

	� There were no changes the recognition and measurement of amounts included in the financial 
statements or significant changes to disclosures from applications of this amendment.
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1.	� Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
	� (r)	 New Accounting Standards issued, but not effective

	 �AASB 2020-1: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Classifications of Liabilities  
as Current or Non-Current and associated amending standards

	� This Standard amends AASB 101 to clarify requirements for the presentation of liabilities in the  
statement of financial position as current or non-current. 

	� For example, the amendments clarify that a liability is classified as non-current if an entity has the  
right at the end of the reporting period to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months  
after the reporting period. The meaning of settlement of a liability is also clarified. 

	 Effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023. 

	� No impact is expected but the Group will reassess the appropriate classification of liabilities as current  
or non-current on application. 

	� �2014–10: Sale or contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture  
and associated amending standards

	� The amendments address an acknowledged inconsistency between the requirements in AASB 10  
and those in AASB 128 (2011), in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor  
and its associate or joint venture. 

	� The main consequence of the amendments is that a full gain or loss is recognised when a transaction 
involves a business (whether it is housed in a subsidiary or not). A partial gain or loss is recognised when 
a transaction involves assets that do not constitute a business, even if these assets are housed in a 
subsidiary. Effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025. 

	� No impact is expected but the Group will consider and take the amendments into consideration  
going forward. 

	� AASB 2021-2: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Disclosure of Accounting Policies  
and Definition of Accounting Estimates 

	 This Standard amends a number of standards as follows: 
	 •	� AASB 7: Financial Instruments: Disclosures to clarify that information about measurement bases  

for financial instruments is expected to be material to an entity’s financial statements; 
	 •	� AASB 101: Presentation of Financial Statements to require entities to disclose their material 

accounting policy information rather than their significant accounting policies; 
	 •	� AASB 108: Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors to clarify how entities 

should distinguish changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting estimates; 
	 •	� AASB 134: Interim Financial Reporting to identify material accounting policy information  

as a component of a complete set of financial statements; and 
	 •	� AASB Practice Statement 2, to provide guidance on how to apply the concept of materiality  

to accounting policy disclosures. 
	 Effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023. 

	� No impact is expected on reported financial performance or position. Reductions in quantum  
of accounting policies disclosures to focus on key decision areas and material policies only. 
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2.	� Revenue and Other Income
Note 2023 2022

$ $
a.	 Revenue
Membership subscriptions 2(d) 6,568,984 4,717,400

�Businesses during COVID-19 health pandemic and the bushfires suffered significant hardship and economic impact and 
were actively encouraged to join VCCI who provided discounts and fee waivers amounting to $NIL (2022: $1,158,923).

b.	 Other revenue
Federal and State Government programs 2(d) 16,877,700  25,679,332

Professional services 2(d) 7,037,660 6,630,112

Training 2(d) 2,926,219 2,135,008

26,841,579  34,444,452

c.	 Other income
Distribution and interest Income from investments 2,928,526 4,636,834

Dividends 509,563 453,703

Other 48,000  406,133

3,486,089 5,496,670

d.	 Timing of revenues
Services transferred to customers

Over time

Membership subscriptions 6,568,984 4,717,400

Professional services 7,037,660 6,630,112

Federal and State Government programs 4,540,944 5,083,322

18,147,588 16,430,834

At a point in time

Federal and State Government programs  12,336,756 20,596,010

Training 2,926,219 2,135,008

15,262,975  22,731,018

33,410,563 39,161,852

e.	 Contract balances
Trade receivables 7 3,530,662 7,486,272

Contract liabilities 12 4,557,688 7,780,323
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2.	� Revenue and Other Income (continued)
	 f.	 Significant performance obligations

	� Membership subscriptions
	� There are two performance obligations within each membership subscription. 

	� Firstly the performance obligation attached with granting the member access to membership benefits 
including price list. This performance obligation is satisfied over time and payment is generally received 
either in advance or on a monthly basis in line with the membership. 

	� The second performance obligation is surrounding membership entitlement credits granted  
to each member in the form of either tickets to future events or credits to offset future services.  
The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the event or future service.

	� Membership entitlements are recognised at the end of each reporting period. Management take into 
account the timing and probability of unused membership entitlements being used over the coming 
period prior to their expiration.

	� Federal and State Government programs (including grants)
	� Each federal and state government program including any grants that the Group receives is treated 

according to the performance obligations embedded in each program and/or grant.

	� Where there are sufficiently specific performance obligations, revenue is allocated and recognised in line 
with each performance obligation over time. 

	� Where grants do not contain sufficiently specific performance obligations they are treated under  
AASB 1058: Income for not-for-profit entities and are then accounted in line with Note 1(k)(v).

	� Professional services
	� The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the services and payment is generally received 

either in advance or due within the Group’s standard credit terms.

	� Training
	� The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the services and payment is generally received 

either in advance or due within the Group’s standard credit terms.

	� Outstanding performance obligations at year-end
	� At 30 June 2023 the aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to the performance obligations 

that are unsatisfied is $4,557,688 (2022: $7,780,323) as per Note 13. The Group expects that these 
performance obligations will be satisfied and recognised as revenue over the next 12 months.
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3.	� Surplus before tax 
2023 2022

$ $
a.	 (Deficit)/Surplus before tax
(Deficit)/Surplus has been determined after:

Affiliation fees paid to Australian Chamber of Commerce and Industry 642,099 636,761

Occupancy expenses 954,561 918,511

Consultancy fees 1,866,019 1,312,397

Amounts written off 305,111 108,666

Reversal of expected credit loss provision (77,429) (52,845)

Advertising 1,363,570 1,983,407

Legal costs relating to other legal matters 17,764 54,574

b.	 Provision for expected credit losses and bad debts
Amounts written off 305,111 108,666

Reversal of expected credit loss provision (77,429) (52,845)

227,682 55,821

Amounts receivable from associate were forgiven during the period as the associate, Workplace Assured Pty Ltd,  
is being wound down. This required reversal of the impairment associated with these receivables as they no longer exist 
and a write off of the receivables has been recognised. The two amounts offset exactly.

c.	 Interest expense
Interest expense on lease liabilities 587,688 671,434

Accretion of interest on provision for make good 17,773 -

605,461 671,434
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4.	� Employee Expenses 
2023 2022

$ $
Employees other than office holders:

Wages and salaries 19,966,957 18,077,599

Superannuation 1,952,793 1,571,555

Leave and other entitlements 461,876 902,703

Cost of separation and redundancies 491,443 466,490

Subtotal employee expenses holders of office 22,873,069 21,018,347

Holders of office:

Wages and salaries 1,071,116  948,421

Superannuation 86,579 75,395

Leave and other entitlements 14,838 17,920

Separation and redundancies - -

Subtotal employee expenses employees other than office holders 1,172,533 1,041,736

Total employee expenses 24,045,602 22,060,083

There were no other employee expenses incurred by the Group for 2023 or 2022.
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5.	� Key Management Personnel Compensation 
a.	 Directors

Total number of Directors and Officers 8 10

The following persons were directors and officers of Victorian Chamber during the financial year:

Name of Officer Office Held Appointed Resigned

Mr Adrian Kloeden President 19.11.2013

Mr Jeremy Blackshaw Director (Deputy President) 14.11.2019

Ms Karyn Sobels Director (Immediate Past President) 22.11.2011

Mr Brian Negus Director 17.11.2016 15.11.2022

Ms Helen Fairclough Director 04.07.2018

Mr Paul Guerra Secretary/Chief Executive 03.02.2020

Ms Kylie Warne Director 14.11.2019

Ms Kathryn Mannix Director 15.11.2022

Ms Carlene Wilson Director 31.03.2021

Mr Brendan Britten Director 15.11.2022

Dr Peter Radoll Director 15.11.2022

Note: during the financial period, on 15.11.2022, Karyn Sobels became Immediate Past President, Adrian Kloeden 
was appointed President and Jeremy Blackshaw was appointed Deputy President. Ms Karyn Sobels was granted  
a leave of absence effective 08.09.2023.

2023 2022

$ $

b.	 Directors and key management personnel compensation

Wages and salaries 1,071,116 948,421

Superannuation 86,579 75,395

Leave and other entitlements 14,838 17,920

1,172,533 1,041,736
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6.	� Cash and Cash Equivalents 
2023 2022

$ $

Cash at bank 13,449,920 18,571,338

Cash at bank includes deposits held in trust for the following purposes: 

–	 Carnet deposits: $1,651,718 (2022: $680,416); and 

–	 Grant funding: $43,379 (2022: $618,937); and 

–	 Funds under management: $6,264,144 (2022: $7,742,008). 

7.	� Trade and Other Receivables
2023 2022

$ $

CURRENT

Trade receivables 1,939,334 6,105,698

Less: Provision for expected credit losses (269,784) (497,466)

1,669,550 5,608,232

Other receivables:

Accrued income 1,792,293 1,665,785

Other debtors 171,355 212,255

1,963,648 1,878,040

Amounts receivable from associate - 1,351,518

Impairment of receivable from associate - (1,351,518)

Total trade and other receivables 3,633,198 7,486,272

Amounts receivable from associate
Amounts receivable from associate were forgiven during the period as the associate, Workplace Assured Pty Ltd, 
is being wound down. This required reversal of the impairment associated with these receivables as they no longer 
exist and a write off of the receivables has been recognised. The two amounts offset exactly.

Credit Risk
The main source of credit risk for the Group relates to the loan receivable from Workplace Assured, which has been 
fully provided for at 30 June 2023. The Group has no other significant concentration of credit risk with respect  
to any other single counterparty or group of counterparties in relation to its trade and other receivables. 
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7.	� Trade and Other Receivables (continued)

2023 Gross  
amount

Past due  
and impaired

Within initial trade  
terms (age in days)

Past due but not  
impaired (age in days)

 
$

 
$

<30 
$

31-60 
$

61-90 
$

>90 
$

Trade receivables 1,939,334 (269,784) 1,316,122 144,679 304,144 174,389

Other receivables 1,963,648 - 1,963,648 - - - 

3,902,982 (269,784) 3,279,770 144,679 304,144 174,389

2022 Gross  
amount

Past due  
and impaired

Within initial trade  
terms (age in days)

Past due but not  
impaired (age in days)

 
$

 
$

<30 
$

31-60 
$

61-90 
$

>90 
$

Trade receivables 6,105,698 (497,466)  1,495,772 1,915,576 1,154,415  1,539,935 

Other receivables 1,878,040 - 1,878,040 - - -

Amounts receivable from 
associate 1,351,518 (1,351,518) - - - 1,351,518

9,335,256 (1,848,984) 3,373,812 1,915,576 1,154,415 2,891,453

Provision for expected credit loss

$

Carrying amount at 30 June 2021 553,287

Charge for the year  52,845

Amounts written off  (108,666)

Carrying amount at 30 June 2022 497,466

Charge for the year 77,429

Amounts written off (305,111)

Carrying amount at 30 June 2023 269,784
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8.	� Financial Instruments
2023 2022

$ $

CURRENT

Term deposits (Amortised cost) 3,486,875 1,486,876

NON-CURRENT

Managed investments (FVTPL) 83,164,124 82,048,497

Total non-current financial instruments 83,164,124 82,048,497

Total financial instruments 86,650,999 83,535,373

The Group has all their financial instruments as classified above are held by a Nominee Custody Service.  
The Group is not the legal owner of the financial instruments but is the beneficial owner. 

9.	 Prepayments
2023 2022

$ $

CURRENT

Prepayments 943,242 1,286,207

10.	� Intangible assets
2023 2022

$ $

NON-CURRENT

Software

Cost 2,820,786 2,797,937

Accumulated amortisation (2,589,066)  (2,394,103)

231,720 403,834

No impairment has been recognised against intangible assets in 2023 (2022: $NIL).

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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10.	� Intangible assets (continued)
Movements in Carrying Amounts
Movement in the carrying amounts for each class of intangible asset between the beginning and the end  
of the current financial year.

TOTAL

$

Carrying amount at 30 June 2021 1,598,701

Amortisation  (1,198,466)

Additions 3,599

Carrying amount at 30 June 2022 403,834

Amortisation (194,963)

Additions 22,849

Carrying amount at 30 June 2023 231,720

11.	� Property, Plant and Equipment
2023 2022

$ $

Leasehold Improvements

Leasehold Improvements 5,304,032 5,304,033

Accumulated depreciation (4,096,264)  (3,571,914)

Total Leasehold Improvements 1,207,768 1,732,119

Plant and Equipment

Plant and equipment at cost 2,112,691 1,984,861

Accumulated depreciation (1,736,959)  (1,437,070)

Total Plant and Equipment 375,732 547,791

Total Property, Plant and Equipment 1,583,500 2,279,910

No impairment has been recognized against property, plant and equipment assets in 2023 (2022: $NIL).

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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11.	� Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)
Movements in Carrying Amounts
Movement in the carrying amounts for each class of property, plant and equipment between the beginning  
and the end of the current financial year.

Leasehold Improvements Plant and Equipment TOTAL
$ $ $

Carrying amount at 30 June 2021 2,305,487 462,731 2,768,218

Additions 9,401 451,659 461,060

Depreciation (582,768) (366,600) (949,368)

Carrying amount at 30 June 2022 1,732,120 547,790 2,279,910

Additions - 127,831 127,831

Depreciation (524,352) (299,889) (824,241)

Carrying amount at 30 June 2023 1,207,768 375,732 1,583,500

12.	� Trade Payables
2023 2022

$ $

CURRENT

Unsecured Liabilities

Trade Payables 899,364 1,756,845

Sundry payables and accruals 1,351,330  1,791,256

Payables to employees 1,451,752 878,395

Carnet deposits held in trust 1,518,328 685,258

5,220,774  5,111,754
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13.	� Contract liability
2023 2022

$ $

CURRENT

Deferred membership revenue 3,130,591 3,361,941

Deferred training revenue 212,440 33,853

Deferred grant revenue 824,772 3,606,986

Other deferred revenue 120,423 160,888

Provision for membership entitlements 269,462 269,462

Memberships paid in advance - 347,193

4,557,688 7,780,323

Membership 
revenue

Training 
revenue

Grant 
revenue

Other 
revenue

Membership 
entitlements

Total 
deferrals

$ $ $ $ $ $

At 30 June 2021 2,541,814 56,811 3,999,316 4,788,941 265,381 11,652,263

Deferred 820,127 - - - 4,081 824,208

Released to profit or loss - (22,958) (392,330) (4,628,053) - (5,043,341)

At 30 June 2022 3,361,941 33,853 3,606,986 160,888 269,462 7,433,130

Deferred 1,145,709 915,913 -  - - 2,061,622

Released to profit or loss (1,377,059) (737,326) (2,782,214) (40,465) - (4,937,064)

At 30 June 2023 3,130,591 212,440 824,772 120,423 269,462 4,557,688
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14.	� Provisions
2023 2022

$ $

CURRENT

Annual leave – employees 933,733 1,016,962

Annual leave – office bearers 106,242 68,643

Long service leave – employees 959,098 1,039,006

Provision for restructure 182,526 -

Bonus provisions 542,198 396,000

2,723,797 2,520,611

NON-CURRENT

Provision for make good 464,949 391,850

Long service leave – employees 72,190 5,993

537,139 397,843

Annual Leave
Full time equivalent staff within the Group are entitled to 20 days of Annual leave per year, with unused leave 
remaining at balance date recognise as a liability to the Group. It is expected the staff will continue to utilise their 
accrued annual leave in the following 12-month period.

Long Service Leave
Full time equivalent staff within the Chamber are entitled to Long Service leave after 10 years of service within  
the Group, and a pro rata payment of unused leave should they terminate their employment after 7 years. The 
group has reviewed their liability in this area and assessed, using probability of service records, a liability that 
reflects the probable future cash outflow to the Group. A portion has been recognised as non-current to reflect  
the requirement to reach the minimum 7 years of service.

Make Good Provisions
The Group operates several regional offices which have varying degrees of Make Good Provisions built into 
contractual lease arrangements. It has been assessed that the Group will be likely to incur these liabilities beyond 
the next 12 months

Provision for Restructure
The organisation recorded a restructuring provision in 2023. The provision relates principally to the corporate 
restructure surrounding downsizing staffing requirements. The restructuring plan was drawn up and announced  
to the employees of before year-end when the provision was recognised in its consolidated financial statements. 

Victorian Chamber of Commerce and Industry 
ABN 37 650 959 904



Victorian Chamber Annual Report 2022-23     54

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

14.	� Provisions (continued)
Bonus Provisions
Within the Group, designated staff have short term incentive arrangements included in their employment 
agreements. A review of these bonus arrangements has seen the Group recognise a liability which will  
be discharged fully within the next 12 months.

Annual Leave Long Service Make Good Restructure Bonus Total

$ $ $ $ $ $

As at 30 June 2022 1,085,606 1,044,999 391,850 - 396,000 2,918,455

Additional provisions 444,193 130,056 73,099 182,526 457,152 1,287,026

Amounts used/ written 
back (489,823) (143,767) - - (310,954) (944,544)

As at 30 June 2023 1,039,976 1,031,288 464,949 182,526 542,198 3,260,937

Current 1,039,976 959,098 - 182,526 542,198 2,723,798

Non-Current - 72,190 464,949 - - 537,139

15.	� Leases
a.	 Right of use assets

2023 2022

$ $
Net carrying amounts

Buildings at cost 6,236,980 18,001,912

Accumulated depreciation (5,394,948) (4,766,559)

842,032 13,235,353

Total

$ $
Movement during the period

As at 1 July 2022 13,235,353 13,235,353

Deductions (713) (713) 

Adjustment for reassessment of option to extend (10,657,635) (10,657,635)

Depreciation expense (1,734,973) (1,734,973)

As at 30 June 2023 842,032 842,032
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15.	� Leases (continued)
b.	 Lease liabilities

2023 2022

$ $
Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities (included under 
interest-bearing loans and borrowings) and the movements during the period:
As at 1 July 2022 17,544,398 18,493,968

Additions - 363,562

Accretion of interest 587,688 671,435

Payments (2,285,110) (1,984,566)

Remeasurement of lease liability (10,657,635) -

As at 30 June 2023 5,189,341 17,544,398

Total current lease liability 2,198,425 1,697,420

Total non-current lease liability 2,990,916 15,846,978

c.	 The following are the amounts recognised in profit or loss:

2023 2022

$ $
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 1,734,973 1,488,465

Interest expense on lease liabilities 587,688 671,435

Total amount recognised in profit or loss 2,322,661 2,392,261

d.	 Future minimum lease payments (undiscounted):

2023 2022

$ $
Not later than one year 2,351,350 2,284,676

Later than one year and not later than five years 3,061,506 9,550,917

Later than five years - 8,453,553

Total current lease payments 5,412,856 20,289,146

The Chamber has reassessed the option to extend the lease associated with the Collins Street office.  
When originally accounted for it was expected that the first five-year option after the initial ten years term  
would be exercised. Having considered the expected needs of the Chamber it has been determined that it  
is unlikely the option will be exercised in its current form. This has resulted in a reassessment of this lease,  
reducing both the right of use assets and lease liabilities by $10,657,635 respectively.
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16.	� Accumulated surplus
	 Restriction of accumulated surplus

The accumulated surplus is not available for distribution to members. The accumulated surplus are available 
for the operations of the Group. In the event of the Group winding up, the accumulated surplus shall be given 
or transferred to some other institution or institutions in compliance with Victorian Chamber’s rules (rule 48).

17.	� Related Party Transactions 
Transactions between related parties are on normal commercial terms and conditions no more favorable than 
those available to other parties unless otherwise stated.

	 PITCHER PARTNERS
During the financial year, the Victorian Chamber made payments to Pitcher Partners of $217,508 (2022: 
$261,680) in respect of professional advisory and tax services and portfolio management services performed 
and received payments from Pitcher Partners of $178,601 (2022: $106,428) in respect of membership, 
sponsorship, consulting, events and training work performed. Brendan Britten is the Managing Partner at 
Pitcher Partners during the financial year. All services rendered were made on an arm’s length commercial 
basis. At the 30 June 2023, $nil (2022: $72,088) was still outstanding in the Group’s debtor ledger.

	 AUSTRALIAN CHAMBER OF COMMERCE AND INDUSTRY (ACCI)
During the financial year, the Victorian Chamber made payments to ACCI of $752,588 (2022: $818,296)  
in respect of affiliation fees, trade documentation and events and received payments from ACCI of $44,000 
(2022: $104,839) in respect of rent, consulting, events and training work performed. Adrian Kloeden 
(President), Paul Guerra (Chief Executive), and Karyn Sobels (Director) were both Board members of ACCI 
during the financial year. All services rendered were made on an arm’s length commercial basis. At the  
30 June 2023 $nil (2022: $nil) was in the Group’s creditor ledger, and $nil (2022: $nil) was outstanding in  
the Group’s debtor ledger.

	 MELBOURNE CONVENTION AND EXHIBITION CENTRE (MCEC)
During the financial year, the Victorian Chamber made payments to MCEC of $116,878 (2022: $51,704) in 
respect of events venue hiring, Internship Program and Partnership Program and received payments from 
MCEC of $12,740 (2022: $74,443) in respect of membership, event and training work performed. Helen 
Fairclough was an Officer at MCEC during the financial year. All services rendered were made on an arm’s 
length commercial basis.

	 CICA (COLLABATIVE ITS) GROUP (CICA)
During the financial year, the Victorian Chamber received payments from CICA of $nil (2022: $770) in respect 
of membership. Brian Negus (Director) was Chairman of the entity during the financial year. All services 
rendered were made on an arm’s length commercial basis. No amounts were outstanding at 30 June 2023  
(30 June 2022: $nil).

	 BRAND BUREAU
During the financial year, the Victorian Chamber received payments from Brand Bureau of $395  
(2022: $385) in respect of membership, consulting, events and training work performed. Kylie Warne 
(Director) was the Director of Brand Bureau during the financial year. All services rendered were made  
on an arm’s length commercial basis. No amounts were outstanding at 30 June 2023 (30 June 2022: $nil). 
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17.	� Related Party Transactions (continued) 

	 MINTERELLISON
During the financial year, the Victorian Chamber received payments from MinterEllison of $30,696  
(2022: $29,700) in respect of membership, consulting, events and training work performed. Jeremy 
Blackshaw (Director) was a Managing Partner of MinterEllison during the financial year. Payments for services 
made of $122,325 (2022: $57,633). All services rendered were made on an arm’s length commercial basis.  
No amounts were outstanding at 30 June 2023 (30 June 2022: $nil). 

	 CHARNWOOD PTY LTD
During the financial year, the Victorian Chamber received payments from Charnwood Pty Ltd of $549  
(2022: $385) in respect of membership. Adrian Kloeden (Director) was the Director during the financial year. 
All services rendered were made on an arm’s length commercial basis. No amounts were outstanding at  
30 June 2023 (30 June 2022: $nil). 

	 RISKINFO PTY LTD
During the financial year, the Victorian Chamber received payments from Riskinfo Pty Ltd of $549  
(2022: $385) in respect of membership. Karyn Sobels (Director) was the Director during the financial year.  
All services rendered were made on an arm’s length commercial basis. No amounts were outstanding at  
30 June 2023 (30 June 2022: $nil).

	 AFS & ASSOCIATES 
During the financial year, the Victorian Chamber received payments from AFS & Associates of $1,040  
(2022: $550) in respect of membership. Kate Mannix (Director) was Chief Executive Officer during the 
financial year. Payments  for services made of $16,500 (2022:$nil). All services rendered were made on  
an arm’s length commercial basis.  No amounts were outstanding at 30 June 2023 (30 June 2022: $nil). 

	 VICTORIA UNIVERSITY 
During the financial year, the Victorian Chamber received payments from Victoria University of $30,484 
(2022: $30,360) in respect of membership. Peter Radoll (Director) was Deputy Vice Chancellor Indigenous, 
Equity and Inclusion during the financial year. Payments  for internship programs were made of $16,500 
(2022:$nil). All services rendered were made on an arm’s length commercial basis.  No amounts were 
outstanding at 30 June 2023 (30 June 2022: $nil). 

	 UNIVERSITY OF MELBOURNE 
During the financial year, the Victorian Chamber received payments from University of Melbourne of 
$30,627 (2022: $31,366) in respect of membership. Carlene Wilson (Director) was Director Policy and 
Government Relations during the financial year. Payments for internship programs were made of $30,800 
(2022:$2,200). All services rendered were made on an arm’s length commercial basis. No amounts were 
outstanding at 30 June 2023 (30 June 2022: $nil). 

	 RELATED PARTY MEMBER TRANSACTIONS
The principal companies of which the Victorian Chamber office holders and Executive Council members 
are proprietor, partner, director, general manager, manager or secretary are required to hold a fully paid-up 
Victorian Chamber membership under Victorian Chamber rules.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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18.	 Interests in Subsidiaries 

a.	� Information about Principal Subsidiaries
�The subsidiaries listed below have share capital consisting solely of ordinary shares which are held directly  
by the Group. The proportion of ownership interests held equals the voting rights held by the Group. Each 
subsidiary’s principal place of business is also its country of incorporation.

Name of Subsidiary Place of Principal/Place of Business Ownership Interest Held by the Group

2023 2022
% %

CCI Victoria Legal Pty Ltd Melbourne, Australia 100 100

CCI Victoria Legal Trust Melbourne, Australia 100 100

VECCI Business Brokers Pty Ltd Melbourne, Australia 100 100

VECCI Business Brokers Trust Melbourne, Australia 100 100

VECCI Export Services Pty Ltd Melbourne, Australia 100 100

VCCI Training Pty Ltd Melbourne, Australia 100 100

b.	 Significant Restrictions
There are no significant restrictions over subsidiaries.

c.	 Transactions Between Subsidiaries
The Victorian Chamber is the ultimate parent entity of CCI Victoria Legal Trust, VECCI Business Brokers Pty Ltd, 
VECCI Business Brokers Trust, VCCI Training Pty Ltd and VECCI Export Services Pty Ltd. During the financial year, 
the Victorian Chamber made payments of $nil to CCI Victoria Legal Trust (2022: $nil). During the financial year,  
the Victorian Chamber received $nil from CCI Victoria Legal trust (2022: $nil). 

�As at 30 June 2023, the Victorian Chamber has outstanding loan balances with CCI Victoria Legal Trust of $nil 
(2022: $nil). The Victorian Chamber assesses whether there is objective evidence that the loan balances have  
been impaired at each reporting date, and as such, the total amount for CCI Victoria Legal Trust is impaired.

19. 	Interests in Associate

a.	 Information about Associate
Workplace Assured Pty Ltd is a national business offering a complete workplace relations solution for small  
to medium business. This investment will be accounted for using the equity method.

b.	 Information about Associate

Name of  
Associate

Place of Principal/Place of 
Business by the Group

% Ownership  
interest held

Primary  
Activities

Workplace Assured Pty Ltd 
(ACN: 612 651 966) Sydney, Australia 49% Employment Insurance

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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19.	 Interests in Associate (continued)

c.	 Summarised financial information about the Associate

2023 2022

$ $
Current Assets 470 378,006

Total Assets 470 378,006

Current Liabilities -  3,723,838

Total Liabilities -  3,723,838

Net Liabilities 470  3,345,832

Revenue/other income 3,337,941  2,544,198

Expenses (8,361)  (1,073,779)

Total Profit 3,329,580  1,470,419

Share of Profit 1,631,494  720,505

d.	 Share of (losses)/profit in Associate

2023 2022

$ $
Unrecognised share of losses at the beginning of the year (1,499,833)  (2,220,338)

Unrecognised share of profit for year 1,631,494 720,505

Cumulative total of unrecognised share of profit/(losses) at year-end 131,661  (1,499,833)

Associate financial statements used in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements have also been 
prepared as at the same reporting date as the Group’s financial statements.

There are no significant restrictions over the associates.

Transactions between Associate and the Victorian Chamber
During the financial year, the Victorian Chamber received payments from Workplace Assured Pty Ltd of $NIL  
(2022: $533,396) in respect of services performed. Its unsecured loan of $1,351,518 as at 30 June 2022 was 
forgiven during the year resulting in no balance remaining. Paul Guerra has been a Director at Workplace Assured 
Pty Ltd during the financial year. All services rendered were made on an arm’s length commercial basis  
in accordance with the shareholders’ agreement.
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20. Cash Flow Information 

2023 2022

$ $
(Deficit)/Surplus after income tax (4,337,483) 1,879,618

Non-cash flows:

— Depreciation and Amortisation  2,754,176 3,637,458

— Provision for expected credit loss and bad debts 227,682 52,845

— Change in fair value of investments (5,115,755) (2,200,010)

— Investment income reinvested (1,288,310) (1,661,181)

— Dividends reinvested (42,676) 453,703

— Interest income reinvested (302,366) (37,092)

— Accretion of interest on lease liabilities 587,688 671,433

— Accretion of interest on provision for make good 17,133 -

Changes in assets and liabilities:

Decrease in receivables and prepayments 4,280,746 1,905,907

Increase in payables and contract liabilities (3,058,015) (4,065,375)

Increase in provisions 342,483 6,529

CASH FLOWS USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES (5,934,697)  643,835

Victorian Chamber of Commerce and Industry 
ABN 37 650 959 904



61     Victorian Chamber Annual Report 2022-23

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

21.	� Financial Risk Management

	 Financial Risk Management Policies
The Group’s financial instruments consist mainly of deposits with banks, local money market instruments, 
short-term investments in term-deposits, managed investments portfolios, accounts receivable and payable, 
loans to and from subsidiaries, and leases. The Group does not speculate in the trading of financial instruments.

	 Investment Risk Management
The Investment Committee, consisting of directors and executives of the Group, engaged independent 
external consultants Pitcher Partners and Emerge Capital as its investment managers during the financial 
year to provide professional advice with respect to the Group’s investments. The Committee and investment 
manager meet on a regular basis to analyse financial risk exposure and to evaluate investment management 
strategies in the context of the most recent economic conditions and forecasts.

The Committee’s overall risk management strategy seeks to assist the Group in meeting its financial targets, 
whilst minimising potential adverse effects on financial performance. The Investment Committee operates 
under policies approved by the Board of Directors. Risk management policies are approved and reviewed  
by the Board of Directors on a regular basis.

The current investment strategy is conservative focused on achieving medium to long term investment gains.

	 (i)	 Financial Risk Exposures and Management
	�	�  The main risks the Group is exposed to through its financial instruments are market risk, interest rate risk, 

price risk and credit risk.
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21. 	�Financial Risk Management (continued)

		  a.	 Interest Rate Risk
	�			�   The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk, which is the risk that a financial instrument’s value will 

fluctuate as a result of changes in market interest rates and the weighted average interest rate for 
classes of financial assets and financial liabilities (calculated using the applicable interest rates and 
balances during the financial year), is set out below:

Cash and Interest Rates

Consolidated

Weighted  
Average Effective  

Interest Rate
Floating  

Interest Rate
Fixed  

Interest Rate
Non-Interest  

Bearing Total

2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
% % $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

Financial Assets

Cash at bank 0.3 0.2 11,449,920 18,571,338 2,000,000 - - - 13,449,920 18,571,338

Financial assets –  
term deposits 1.05 0.9 - 3,486,875 1,486,875 - - 3,486,875 1,486,875

Financial assets – 
managed investments - - 1,102,006 938,333 18,110,428 17,150,698 63,951,690 63,959,448 83,164,124 82,048,479

Trade and other 
receivables - - - - 3,633,198 7,486,272 3,633,198 7,486,272

Total Financial 
Assets - - 12,551,926 19,509,671 23,597,303 18,637,573 67,584,888 71,445,720 103,734,117 109,592,964

Financial Liabilities

Trade and  
other payables - - - - - - 5,220,774 5,111,754 5,220,774 5,111,754

Total Financial 
Liabilities - - - - - - 5,220,774 5,111,754 5,220,774 5,111,754
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21.	 Financial Risk Management (continued)
	 Investment Risk Management (continued)

	 b.	� Market Risk
	� The maximum exposure to market risk, which is the risk that a financial instrument’s fair value will 

fluctuate as a result of changes in the market price of the financial instruments, amounts to the value 
of the financial instrument as disclosed in the Statement of Financial Position. Refer to the sensitivity 
analysis below at note 20(e).

	 c.	� Credit Risk
	� Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument  

or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk from its operating 
activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its investing activities primarily deposits with banks  
and financial institutions.

	� Trade receivables and contract assets
	� Customer credit risk is managed by the Group’s finance team dictated by the Group’s policies, procedures 

and controls relating to customer risk management.

	� An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using an expected credit loss model which 
is applied to all trade receivable and contract asset balances that are subject to credit risk. The Group 
considers the key revenue streams subject to credit risk being membership, professional service and 
training revenue. The Group looks at the 5 year rolling average of bad debts written off against these 
revenue streams adjusted for the following factors when calculating the expected credit loss model:

	 •	 Customer receivable balances over 365+ days, and
	 •	 Related party receivables whereby they have increased control on recoverability.

	� Based on this credit risk evaluation, the simplified expected credit loss model implies a loss rate  
of the revenue streams subject to credit at 30 June 2023 was 1.63% (2022: 3.69%).

	 The Group evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables and contract assets as low.

	 d.	� Liquidity Risk

	� Liquidity risk arises from the possibility that the Group might encounter difficulty in settling its debts  
or otherwise meeting its obligations related to financial liabilities. The Group does not have a significant 
liquidity risk. The only financial liabilities are trade and other payables to the value of $5,220,774 
(2022: $5,111,754) which are due for payment within 1 year. With cash equalling $13,449,921 (2022: 
$18,571,338), and liquid assets of $17,530,563 (2022: $28,830,691) held in financial assets – managed 
investment, the Group has sufficient financial and liquid assets available to meet its debts as and when 
they fall due.

Victorian Chamber of Commerce and Industry 
ABN 37 650 959 904



Victorian Chamber Annual Report 2022-23     64

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

21.	 Financial Risk Management (continued)
	 Investment Risk Management (continued)

	 e.	� Sensitivity Analysis
	� The Group does not have any borrowings and therefore the main exposure would be in market risk  

due to price movements of investments. The following table summarises the sensitivity of the Group’s 
non-interest bearing financial assets to the movement in the market.

	� Carrying value of non-current non-interest bearing financial assets at fair value at 30 June 2023 is 
$63,822,414 (2022: $63,959,448).

Profit Equity

$ $
Year ended 30 June 2023

Fair value on 3% movement +/- 1,914,672 +/- 1,914,672

Fair value on 5% movement +/- 3,191,121 +/- 3,191,121

Fair value on 10% movement +/- 6,382,241 +/- 6,382,241

Year ended 30 June 2022

Fair value on 3% movement +/- 1,918,783 +/- 1,918,783

Fair value on 5% movement +/- 3,197,972 +/- 3,197,972

Fair value on 10% movement +/- 6,395,945 +/- 6,395,945

Price risk relates to the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument and future cash flows will fluctuate because 
of changes in market prices of securities held. Such risk is managed through diversification of investments across 
industries and geographic locations. The Group’s managed investments are held in the following financial assets  
at the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

21.	 Financial Risk Management (continued)
	 e.	� Sensitivity Analysis (continued)
	�

2023 2022

$ $
Cash 10% 10%

Fixed Interest 17% 14%

Australian Shares 12% 12%

Overseas Shares 10% 9%

Overseas Property 0% 0%

Unlisted Property 38% 41%

Alternatives 9% 9%

The following table illustrates sensitivities to the Group’s exposures to changes in interest rates and equity prices. 
The table indicates the impact on how profit and equity values reported at the end of the reporting period would 
have been affected by changes in the relevant risk variable that management considers to be reasonably possible. 
These sensitivities assume that the movement in a particular variable is independent of other variables.

Profit Equity

$ $
Year ended 30 June 2023

2% in interest rate +/-1,276,448 +/-1,276,448

10% in listed investments +/-6,382,241 +/-6,382,241

Year ended 30 June 2022

2% in interest rate +/-1,279,189 +/-1,279,189

10% in listed investments +/-6,395,945 +/-6,395,945
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22.	Fair Value Measurements
The Group measures and recognises the following assets and liabilities at fair value on a recurring basis after 
initial recognition:

–	 Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss

The Group does not subsequently measure any liabilities at fair value on a recurring basis, or any assets  
or liabilities at fair value on a non-recurring basis.

	 a.	� Fair Value Hierarchy
	�	�  AASB 13: Fair Value Measurement requires the disclosure of fair value information by level of the fair 

value hierarchy, which categorises fair value measurements into one of three possible levels based  
on the lowest level that an input that is significant to the measurement can be categorised into as follows:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Measurements based on quoted 
prices (unadjusted) in active 
market for identical assets or 
liabilities that the entity can 
assess at the measurement date.

Measurements based on 
inputs other than quoted 
prices included in Level 1 that 
are observable for the asset 
or liability, either directly or 
indirectly.

Measurements based on 
unobservable inputs for the 
asset or liability.

	� The fair values of assets and liabilities that are not traded in an active market are determined using one 
or more valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximise, to the extent possible, the use of 
observable market data. If all significant inputs required to measure fair value are observable, the asset or 
liability is included in Level 2. If one or more significant inputs are not based on observable market data, 
the asset or liability is included in Level 3.

	 Valuation Techniques
The Group selects a valuation technique that is appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient  
data is available to measure fair value. The availability of sufficient and relevant data primarily depends  
on the specific characteristics of the asset or liability being measured. The valuation techniques selected  
by the Group are consistent with one or more of the following valuation approaches:

–	� Market approach: valuation techniques that use prices and other relevant information generated by 
market transactions for identical or similar assets or liabilities.

–	� Income approach: valuation techniques that convert estimated future cash flows or income and expenses 
into a single discounted present value.

–	� Cost approach: valuation techniques that reflect the current replacement cost of an asset at its current 
service capacity.
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22.	� Fair Value Measurements (continued)

	 Valuation Techniques (continued)

Each valuation technique requires inputs that reflect the assumptions that buyers and sellers would use 
when pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about risks. When selecting a valuation technique, 
the Group gives priority to those techniques that maximise the use of observable inputs and minimise 
the use of unobservable inputs. Inputs that are developed using market data (such as publicly available 
information on actual transactions) and reflect the assumptions that buyers and sellers would generally  
use when pricing the asset or liability are considered observable, whereas inputs for which market data  
is not available and therefore are developed using the best information available about such assumptions  
are considered unobservable.

The following tables provide the fair values of the Group’s assets and liabilities measured and recognised  
on a recurring basis after initial recognition and their categorisation within the fair value hierarchy: 

Recurring Fair Value Measurements Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

$ $ $ $
2023 

Financial assets

– �Managed investments at fair  
value through profit or loss 83,164,124 - - 83,164,124

2022 

Financial assets

– �Managed investments at fair  
value through profit or loss 82,048,479 - - 82,048,479

There has been no change in the valuation techniques used to calculate the fair values disclosed in the 
consolidated financial statements. There has been no transfer between fair value hierarchies during the year.

23.	Remuneration of Auditors (SW Audit)

2023 2022

$ $

Financial statement audit services 127,000 105,000

Audit of grant acquittals 3,300 2,200

Total audit services 130,300 107,200

Other services 25,000 36,500

155,300 143,700

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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24.	Parent Entity
The following information has been extracted from the books and records of the parent and has been prepared  
in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards.

2023 2022

$ $

Statement of Financial Position

ASSETS

Current assets 21,803,090 28,820,534

Non-current assets 85,521,394 97,967,595

TOTAL ASSETS 107,324,484 126,788,129

LIABILITIES  

Current liabilities 14,675,842 17,085,253

Non-current liabilities 3,528,056 16,244,821

TOTAL LIABILITIES 18,203,898 33,330,074

EQUITY  

Retained earnings 91,553,776 93,458,055

TOTAL EQUITY 91,553,776 93,458,055

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

Total (deficit)/surplus (6,351,125) 1,879,618

Total Comprehensive Income for the year (6,351,125) 1,879,618

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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25.	Organisation Details
The registered office and principal place of business of the Victorian Chamber is:

Victorian Chamber of Commerce and Industry (Victorian Chamber) 
150 Collins Street 
MELBOURNE VIC 3000

The principal activities of the Victorian Chamber during the financial year were to assist the interests of 
Victorian business members and contributors via representation and advocacy to Government and policy 
makers along with providing membership services primarily involving Industrial Relations, information, advice, 
networking and value added professional services. 

26.	� Additional Disclosures – section 272 of Fair Work (Registered 
Organisations) Act 2009
In accordance with the requirements of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009, the attention  
of members is drawn to the provisions of subsections (1) to (3) of section 272, which reads as follows: 

Information to be provided to members or Commissioner:

1)	� A member of a reporting unit, or the Commissioner, may apply to the reporting unit for specified 
prescribed information in relation to the reporting unit to be made available to the person making the 
application.

2)	� The application must be in writing and must specify the period within which, and the manner in which, 
the information is to be made available. The period must not be less than 14 days after the application  
is given to the reporting unit.

3)	� A reporting unit must comply with an application made under subsection (1).

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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I, Paul Guerra, being the Chief Executive Officer of the Group, declare that the following activities did not occur 
during the reporting period ending 30 June 2023:

The Group did not:
•	 �agree to receive financial support from another 

reporting unit to continue as a going concern  
(refers to agreement regarding financial support  
not dollar amount) 

•	 �agree to provide financial support to another 
reporting unit to ensure they continue as a going 
concern (refers to agreement regarding financial 
support not dollar amount) 

•	 �acquire an asset or liability due to an amalgamation 
under Part 2 of Chapter 3 of the RO Act, a 
restructure of the branches of an organisation, a 
determination or revocation by the General Manager, 
Fair Work Commission 

•	 �receive capitation fees or any other revenue amount 
from another reporting unit

•	 �receive revenue via compulsory levies 
•	 �receive revenue from undertaking recovery of  

wages activity 
•	 �incur fees as consideration for employers making 

payroll deductions of membership subscriptions 
•	 �pay capitation fees or any other expense to another 

reporting unit
•	 pay compulsory levies 
•	 pay a grant that was $1,000 or less 
•	 pay a grant that exceeded $1,000 
•	 pay a donation that was $1,000 or less 
•	 pay a donation that exceeded $1,000
•	 receive a donation
•	 pay other employee expenses to holders of office 
•	 �pay other employee expenses to employees (other 

than holders of office) 
•	 �pay to a person fees or allowances to attend 

conferences or meetings as a representative of the 
reporting unit 

•	 �incur expenses due to holding a meeting as required 
under the rules of the organisation 

•	 �pay legal costs relating to litigation 

•	 �pay a penalty imposed under the RO Act or the  
Fair Work Act 2009 

•	 �have a receivable with other reporting unit(s) 
•	 have a payable with other reporting unit(s) 
•	 �have a payable to an employer for that employer 

making payroll deductions of membership 
subscriptions 

•	 �have a separation and redundancy provision  
in respect of holders of office

•	 �have a fund or account for compulsory levies, 
voluntary contributions or required by the rules  
of the organisation or branch 

•	 �transfer to or withdraw from a fund (other than  
the general fund), account, asset or controlled entity 

•	 �have a balance within the general fund 
•	 �provide cash flows to another reporting unit  

and/or controlled entity 
•	 �receive cash flows from another reporting unit  

and/or controlled entity 
•	 �have another entity administer the financial affairs  

of the reporting unit 
•	 �make a payment to a former related party of the 

reporting unit 

Name: Paul Guerra 
Title of office held: Secretary and Chief Executive

Officer Declaration Statement

Signature 
Date: 19th October 2023
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Committee of Management Statement 
On 19 October 2023, the Members of the Committee of Management (Board of Directors) of the Victorian 
Chamber passed the following resolution in relation to the general purpose financial report (GPFR) for the 
financial year ended 30 June 2023:  

The Board of Directors declares in relation to the general purpose financial report that in its opinion: 
	 a)	� The consolidated financial statements and notes comply with the Australian Accounting Standards;
	 b)	� The consolidated financial statements and notes comply with any other requirements imposed by  

the Reporting Guidelines or Part 3 of Chapter 8 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009  
(the RO Act); 

	 c)	� The consolidated financial statements and notes give a true and fair view of the financial performance, 
financial position and cash flows of the reporting unit for the financial year to which they relate; 

	 d)	� There are reasonable grounds to believe that the reporting unit will be able to pay its debts as and  
when they become due and payable;

	 e)	� During the financial year to which the GPFR relates and since the end of that year: 
	 i.	� meetings of the board of directors were held in accordance with the rules of the organisation 

including the rules of a branch concerned; 
	 ii.	� the financial affairs of the reporting unit have been managed in accordance with the rules of  

the organisation including the rules of a branch concerned; 
	 iii.	� the financial records of the reporting unit have been kept and maintained in accordance with  

the RO Act; 
	 iv.	� where the organisation consists of two or more reporting units, the financial records of the  

reporting unit have been kept, as far as practicable, in a consistent manner with each of the  
other reporting units of the organisation; and 

	 v.	� where information has been sought in any request by a member of the reporting unit or 
Commissioner duly made under section 272 of the RO Act has been provided to the member  
or Commissioner; 

	 vi.	� where any order for inspection of financial records has been made by the Fair Work Commission 
under section 273 of the RO Act, there has been compliance.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Committee of Management.

Name: Paul Guerra 
Title of office held: Secretary and Chief Executive

Name: Jeremy Blackshaw 
Title of office held: Deputy President

Signature 
Date: 19th October 2023

Signature 
Date: 19th October 2023
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